
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
July 11, 2013 

7 p.m. Regular Meeting   
Newberg Public Safety Building   

       401 E. Third Street 
 

I.  CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. CONSENT CALENDAR (items are considered routine and are not discussed unless requested by the 

commissioners) 
 1. Approval of June 13, 2013  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS  (5 minute maximum per person) 
 1. For items not listed on the agenda 
 
V. QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARINGS  (complete registration form to give testimony - 5 minute maximum per 

person except for principals, unless otherwise set by majority motion of the Planning Commission).  No new 
public hearings after 10 p.m. except by majority vote of the Planning Commissioners. 

 
 1. APPLICANT: Del Boca Vista, LLC 
  REQUEST: Approval of a 44 lot subdivision preliminary plat, to be called Terra Estates 
  LOCATION: 3805 Terrace Drive 
  TAX LOT: 3207-00500 
  FILE NO.: SUB2-12-003 ORDER NO.: 2013-13 
  CRITERIA: 15.235.060(A) 
 
 2. APPLICANT: Argyle Winery 
  REQUEST: Approval of a conditional use permit/design review to change the use of an existing site 
  and allow a winery in the former Suntron building. 
  LOCATION: 800 N. Brutscher Street 
  TAX LOT: 3216-2009 

  FILE NO.: CUP-13-002/DR1-13-008 ORDER NO.: 2013-12 

  CRITERIA: 15.220.050, 15.225.060 
 

VI. ITEMS FROM STAFF 
 1. Update on Council items 
 2. Other reports, letters, or correspondence 
 3. Next Planning Commission Meeting: August 8, 2013 
 
VII. ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS 
 
VIII. ADJOURN  
 

 
FOR QUESTIONS PLEASE STOP BY, OR CALL 503-537-1240, PLANNING & BUILDING DEPT. - P.O. BOX 970 - 414 E. FIRST 
STREET   
 

ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: 
In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City Recorder’s office of any special physical accommodations 
you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, 
please contact the city recorder at (503) 537-1283. For TTY services please dial 711. 

 

1 of 203



 
 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (June 13, 2013) Page 1 of 4 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
June 13, 2013 

7 p.m. Regular Meeting   
Newberg Public Safety Building   

 401 E. Third Street 
 

I.  CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Chair Cathy Stuhr called the meeting to order at 7:00PM with a quote from Hellen Keller in honor of Joann 
Austin. 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
Members Present: Cathy Stuhr, Chair Jason Dale Art Smith  
 Antonio Saavedra, Student PC Philip Smith  
 Mayor Bob Andrews (Ex-officio)    
 
Members Absent: Allyn Edwards (Excused) Gary Bliss (Excused)  
 
Staff Present: Steve Olson, Associate Planner Barton Brierley, Planning and Building Director
 Mandy Dillman, Minutes Recorder 
 
Others Present: John Bridges 
 
III. CONSENT CALENDAR (items are considered routine and are not discussed unless requested by 

the commissioners) 
 1. Approval of May 9, 2013 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
 
MOTION:    A Smith/P Smith approval of May 9, 2013, Planning Commission Meeting Minutes. 
Motion carried (4 Yes/0 No/2 Absent [Edwards, Bliss]). 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS   
 1. For items not listed on the agenda 
 
Chair Stuhr opened and closed public comments as there was no one to testify.  
 
V. LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARINGS (Continued from previous meetings. Public testimony was 

closed on both of these items, and they were continued at the point of deliberation.)  
 
 1. APPLICANT: City of Newberg  
  REQUEST:   Amend the Newberg Development Code to replace the zoning use lists with 

comprehensive zoning use table  
  LOCATION: City wide 
  FILE NO.: DCA-12-002 RESOLUTION NO.:  2013-299 
 

2 of 203



 
 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (June 13, 2013) Page 2 of 4 
 

Mr. Barton Brierley, planning and building director, presented the staff report accompanied by a PowerPoint 
presentation (see official meeting packet for full report).   
 
Mr. Brierley explained at the last meeting commissioners expressed general agreement with the proposal and 
gave specific suggestions for changes.  Those changes have been made and are reflected in the new packet.  
 
Commission Art Smith was concerned that by making distinctions between categories and specific areas, 
they are making the document more confusing.  
 
Chair Stuhr re-opened public testimony.  
 
Mr. John Bridges gave testimony on allowing daycare centers as a conditional use in industrial zones.  He 
shared information he had gathered from other communities in regards to this, which showed most 
surrounding cities do allow daycares in industrial zones.    
 
Chair Stuhr expressed her concern with allowing daycares in industrial areas, which may result in one being 
opened in a heavy industrial area and could be hazardous to children.  Mr. Bridges explained a daycare could 
be inside a business in a heavy industrial area to prevent pollution issues; however, Newberg does not have a 
lot of heavy industrial.  He mentioned Newberg has a higher per capita basis of manufacturing jobs than 
anywhere else in the state.  
 
Student Commissioner Antonio Saavedra thanked him for his request, and expressed his concern that the 
safety of the children should come first.  Mr. Bridges explained his proposal allows the commission to 
analyze applications as a conditional use, and if it is a dangerous site for a daycare, they would have the 
ability to not allow the application.  Mayor Andrews asked about daycares inside industrial facilities and it 
was determined businesses across the country have daycares inside and in order to do so they must be 
considered an accessory use.  Mr. Bridges brought to their attention Newberg’s current code does not 
preclude industrial companies from having an inside daycare as an accessory use, but do preclude it as a 
stand alone business.  
 
Mr. Brierley described the four types of industrial zones the city has: M-4 which has conditional use daycare, 
M-3 which is really heavy industry and can only have a daycare if it is inside and a stand alone daycare 
would not be allowed, M-2 which is the broadest industrial area and includes daycares as accessory uses, and 
M-1, which is not a very common zone.  
 
Staff recommends approval of PC-2013-299, recommending the city council adopt the changes to the zoning 
use table. 
 
Commissioner Jason Dale asked what the criteria would be for M-1 and M-2 zones.  Mr. Brierley said they 
are already listed in the code as conditional use criteria.  Examples of criteria would include being 
compatible to the surrounding areas, attractiveness, yard space, wall and fence dimensions, parking lots, and 
regulations for noise.   
 
MOTION:    P Smith/A Smith approval of PC-2013-299, recommending the city council adopt the 
changes to the zoning use table and make daycares a conditional use in M-1 and M-2.  
 

3 of 203



 
 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (June 13, 2013) Page 3 of 4 
 

Commissioner Philip Smith asked what M-4’s permitted use is currently.   Mr. Brierley replied it is a 
conditional use similar to the other zones.  Commissioner Art Smith said he feels all four zones should be 
allowed and the commission can determine which are allowable on a case by case basis.  Chair Stuhr agreed 
with commissioner Art Smith, stating it would be simpler.  
 
Student Commissioner Saavedra expressed again his desire to keep Newberg safe in the future and stressed 
they should look decisively into each case to determine the eligibility.   
 
MOTION:    P Smith/A Smith approval of PC-2013-299, recommending the city council adopt the 
changes to the zoning use table and make daycares a conditional use in M-1, M-2, and M-3. Motion carried 
(3 Yes/1 No [Dale]/2 Absent [Edward, Bliss]). 
 
 
 2. APPLICANT:  Newberg City Council 

REQUEST:  Create a policy regarding motorist information follow-up signs on city streets 
LOCATION: City wide 
FILE NO.:  G-13-002  RESOLUTION NO.: 2013-298 

 
 
Barton Brierley presented the staff report.  Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 2013-298, to create 
a policy regarding motorist information follow-up signs on city streets.   
 
Discussion commenced on the follow-up sign criteria.  It was determined the sign must be required by the 
state as a follow-up sign to an approved state highway sign in order to be considered. Additionally there is a 
limit of two signs per business.  
 
Chair Stuhr mentioned the wording on page 111.  It was decided to change the wording from “approval 
resides with the business or operator" to “approval is granted to the business operator”.  
 
Chair Stuhr opened and closed public testimony as there was no one to testify.  
 
MOTION:    P Smith/Dale approval of PC-2013-298 to create a policy regarding motorist information 
follow-up signs on city streets, as amended. Motion carried (Yes/0 No/2 Absent [Edward, Bliss]) 
 
VI. ITEMS FROM STAFF 

1. Update on Council items 
 
Mr. Brierley mentioned there was a hearing last Thursday for the UGB amendment by the county 
commissioners with the record being left open until 5:00PM today to add testimony.  Next Thursday the city 
will submit additional comments and on June 27, 2013, the county commissioners are scheduled to 
deliberate.  At the next planning commission meeting there will be a new planning commissioner.  
 
Student Commissioner Saavedra explained he has been working on getting another student to join the 
planning commission.  
 

4 of 203



 
 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (June 13, 2013) Page 4 of 4 
 

Mr. Brierley said the Design Star program received an award from the National Planning Association.  He 
explained Jessica Nunley went to Chicago to receive the award and a professional video was made from 
Newberg’s participants.  The video is available on YouTube to watch.  
 
Mr. Steve Olson, associate planner, reported the Chehalem Cultural Center received news from SHPO that 
the Cultural Center was not considered eligible for the National Historic Register and therefore SHPO would 
not be making comments regarding the proposed forecourt project. The site still has a local historic overlay 
on it, however.   
 
 2. Other reports, letters, or correspondence 
 3. Next Planning Commission Meeting: July 11, 2013 
 
VII. ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS 
 
Student Commissioner Saavedra sent in a letter about stop signs but never heard back from the Traffic Safety 
Commission.  He wants them to focus on this item because some of the stop signs are near school zones, one 
at the public library, and one near Nara Teriyaki, all places children frequent.  Chair Stuhr asked him to keep 
updating them as he learns more.  
 
VIII. ADJOURN  
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:58PM.  
 
Approved by the Newberg Planning Commission this 11th day of July, 2013. 
 
 
 
____________________________ ____________________________ 
Mandy Dillman Cathy Stuhr 
Minutes Recorder Planning Commission Chair 
 
 

 

5 of 203



Exhibit “2” 
To Planning Commission Rules 

 

 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Rules & Guidelines                                   Page 18 

OUTLINE FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 
Newberg Planning Commission 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING, ANNOUNCE THE PURPOSE, DISCUSS TESTIMONY 
PROCEDURE, AND TIME ALLOTMENTS 

 
2.    CALL FOR ABSTENTIONS, BIAS, EX PARTE CONTACT, AND OBJECTIONS TO 

JURISDICTION  
 
3. LEGAL ANNOUNCEMENT 
 READ “QUASI-JUDICIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS” SHEET 
 
4. STAFF REPORT 
 COMMISSION MAY ASK BRIEF QUESTIONS FOR CLARIFICATION 

   
5. PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 5 MINUTE TIME LIMIT PER SPEAKER (15 MINUTE LIMIT FOR APPLICANT AND 
PRINCIPAL OPPONENT).  SPEAKER GOES TO WITNESS TABLE, STATES NAME & 
PRESENTS TESTIMONY.  COMMISSION MAY ASK QUESTIONS OF SPEAKERS. 
 A. APPLICANT(S) 
 B. OTHER PROPONENTS                 
 C. OPPONENTS AND UNDECIDED 
 D. STAFF READS WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE (TIME LIMIT APPLIES)  
 E. APPLICANT REBUTTAL 
 
6 CLOSE OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY PORTION OF HEARING 
 
7.  FINAL COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND RECOMMENDATION  
 
8. PLANNING COMMISSION DELIBERATION INCLUDING DISCUSSION OF CRITERIA 

WITH FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
9. ACTION BY THE PLANNING COMMMISSION 
 A. ORDER OR RESOLUTION – Usually requires passage of order if the 

commission is the final decision maker, or a resolution if the commission is only 
advisory to the council. 

 B. VOTE – Vote is done by roll call. 
C. COMBINATION – Can be combined with other commission action; separate vote 

on each action is required. 

6 of 203



 

QUASI-JUDICIAL 
 PUBLIC HEARING PROCESS 
 TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE REQUIREMENTS 
  
 
ORS 197.763 requires certain statements to be made at the commencement of a public hearing. 
 
• The applicable City and State zoning criteria must be listed.  This means that we must advise you of 

the standards that must be satisfied by the applicant prior to our approval of an application.  The 
Planning Staff will list the applicable criteria during his or her presentation of the staff report. 

 
• Persons wishing to participate in this hearing must direct their testimony or the evidence toward the 

criteria stated by the Planner or other specific City or State criteria which you believe apply.  You 
must tell us why the testimony or evidence relates to the criteria. 

 
• Any issue which might be raised in an appeal of this case to the Land Use Board of Appeals 

(LUBA) must be raised in person or by letter at the local level prior to the City approving or 
denying the application.  The law states that the issue must be raised in enough detail to afford the 
decision-maker and the parties an opportunity to respond.  This part of the law is also known as the 
"raise it or waive it" requirement.  If you do not bring it up now, you can't bring it up at LUBA. 

 
• Failure of the applicant to raise constitutional or other issues relating to proposed conditions of 

approval in enough detail to allow the local government or its designee to respond to the issue 
precludes an action for damages in Circuit Court. 

 
•  Prior to the conclusion of the initial evidentiary hearing on an application, any participant may 

request an opportunity to present additional evidence or testimony regarding the application.  The 
Planning Commission will grant such a request through a continuance or extension of the record. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7 of 203



 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

 Planning and Building Department 
  P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132 

      503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 
TERRA ESTATES SUBDIVISION  

  

HEARING DATE: July 11, 2013 

FILE NO:  SUB2-12-003 

REQUEST: Tentative plan approval for a subdivision that would include 44 lots and one 
stormwater tract. 

LOCATION: 3805 Terrace Drive 

TAX LOT: 3207-00500 

APPLICANT: The applicant is Del Boca Vista, LLC, represented by Mike Hanks, member.  
The property is owned by the Hutchison Estate. 

ZONE: R-1 (Low Density Residential) 

PLAN DISTRICT: MDR 

OVERLAYS: Stream Corridor (a small portion of the stream corridor is on proposed lot 37) 
 

ATTACHED: 
Order 2013-13 with 
Exhibit “A”:  Findings 
Exhibit “B”:  Conditions 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Aerial Photo 
2. Tentative Plan 
3. Contours Map 
4. Zoning Map 
5. Public Comments  
6. Application 
7. Development Code (by 

reference) 

8 of 203

http://www.newbergoregon.gov/


 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

A. DESCRIPTION OF APPLICATION:   The applicant, Del Boca Vista, LLC, has requested 
approval to subdivide a piece of property into 44 lots and one stormwater tract.  One of the 
proposed lots (lot 37) contains a small portion of the city’s mapped and protected stream 
corridor, and proposed tract A will have a stormwater quality/detention pond to serve the site. 
The proposed subdivision would have access from two new east/west streets off of Terrace 
Drive and from a northern extension of Morris Street.  The lots range in size from 5,000 to 
7,629 square feet.  All meet or exceed the minimum lot size of 5,000 square feet required for 
the R-1 zone.   

B. SITE INFORMATION: 

1. Location:  3805 Terrace Drive 

2. Size: approximately 7.9 acres 

3. Topography: relatively gentle slope to the northeast 

4. Current Land Uses: vacant, with an existing gravel driveway used by the former house 
on the property, which was donated to the fire department and used in a “burn to learn” 
in 2011 

5. Natural Features: There is a small portion of the city’s designated stream corridor 
overlay in the far northwest corner of the property; the stream corridor area will be 
required to be delineated and protected during site grading and construction. The site 
contains a few large trees around the former home site and near the southern portion of 
the property, many of which will likely be removed during site construction. 

6. Adjacent Land Uses: 
a. North: rural residential  
b. East: rural residential 
c. South: single-family residential 
d. West: vacant farmland  

7. Access and Transportation: The proposed subdivision is accessed by two new 
east/west streets coming off of Terrace Drive and by a northerly extension of Morris 
Street.  Terrace Drive is currently substandard width and will require a 10-foot right-
of-way dedication from the property along with a half-street improvement to include 
sidewalks, curbs, and gutters.  All streets serving the subdivision will be fully 
improved with sidewalks, curbs, and gutters.   

8. Utilities: 
a. Sanitary Sewer:  All of the lots would be served by a new 8-inch line extending 

north from the existing line in Terrace Drive. 
b. Water: All of the lots would be served by a new 8-inch water line extending 

north from both Morris Street and Terrace Drive and looping through the 
subdivision.  There is an existing fire hydrant on Terrace Drive at the northeast 
edge of the subdivision, and new fire hydrants are planned for the southwest 

9 of 203



 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

corner of the subdivision on Morris Street and the northern intersection of 
Morris Street and Camellia Road.   

c. Storm: A new stormwater system will be built to convey stormwater from the 
subdivision to a stormwater quality/detention facility in Tract A.   

C. PROCESS:  The subdivision request follows the procedures in Newberg Development Code 
15.100.050.  The Planning Commission will hold a quasi-judicial hearing on the application.  
The Commission is to make a decision on the application based on the criteria listed in the 
attached findings.  The Planning Commission’s decision is final unless appealed.  Important 
dates related to this application are as follows: 

1. May 23, 2013: The planning director deemed the application complete. 
2. May 23, 2013: The applicant mailed notice to the property owners within 500 

feet of the site and posted the site. 
3. June 5, 2013: Public comments received requesting a Planning Commission 

hearing on the application. 
4. June 20, 2013: The applicant mailed notice of the Planning Commission 

hearing to property owners within 500 feet.   
5. June 26, 2013: The Newberg Graphic published notice of the Planning 

Commission hearing. 
6. July 11, 2013: The Planning Commission will hold a quasi-judicial hearing to 

consider the application. 

D. AGENCY COMMENTS:  The application was routed to several public agencies for review 
and comment.  Comments and recommendations from city departments have been 
incorporated into the findings and conditions.  As of the writing of this report, the city 
received the following agency & department comments:   

1. Newberg School District: Reviewed; no conflict 
2. Waste Management (Jack Miller):  Reviewed; no conflict. 
3. Newberg Fire Department: Place hydrants as required by Fire Code and correct 

GPM. 
4. Newberg Engineering Services Department:  

a. An abbreviated fire flow calculation dated July 25, 2013 for the project site 
was submitted by the applicant.  Fire flow calculations will be required to be 
submitted to the Engineering Services Department for the proposed subdivision 
that conform to the City of Newberg Fire Department Standards, indicating  that 
each lot in the new subdivision will meet the minimum service requirements. 

b. Domestic water flow calculations will be required to be submitted to the 
Engineering Services Department for the proposed subdivision that conform to the 
City Building Department requirements indicating that minimum service pressures 
are available at the future highest fixtures in the development. 

c. The proposed storm drainage water quality/quantity facility shall be fully 
constructed with the first phase of development.  Applicant’s civil engineer is to 
meet with Engineering Services Department staff to review the proposed design.  
The control structure shall discharge into a rock armored open channel/ditch to 
transmit the stormwater flows to the receiving stream. 

10 of 203



 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

d. All stormwater detention and water quality hydraulic and sediment control 
structures shall have adequate maintenance access for the City vactor truck within 
10 feet of the proposed structure. 

e. The proposed stormwater tract shall be under ownership separate from the 
City and subject to a recorded public storm drainage easement over its entirety. A 
City standard private stormwater facility maintenance agreement shall be 
completed by the applicant and recorded for private maintenance of the 
stormwater facility.  The agreement shall state the responsible party(s) for the 
required facility maintenance.   

f. Sanitary sewer facilities in Terrace Drive shall be constructed to serve future 
development in the basin.  A basin plan shall be prepared by an engineer of record 
and submitted to the Engineering Services Department. 

g. A geotechnical engineering report will be required for the project. 
h. Each street intersection in the proposed subdivision shall meet AASHTO 

vertical and horizontal intersection sight distance requirements, as verified by the 
engineer of record. 

 
E. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  As of the writing of this report, the city has received several written 

public comments, which are attached in Attachment 5.  The main concerns cited in the public 
comments include: traffic congestion; the impact of the proposed development on existing 
property values; the higher density of the proposed subdivision relative to the existing 
subdivisions to the south, and the reduced lot sizes in R-1 from 7,500 square feet to 5,000 
square feet; school crowding; and whether water pressure can handle the development. 

F. ANALYSIS:  The applicants were required to complete a traffic study, which analyzed traffic 
at the following intersections: College Street/Foothills Drive, Foothills Drive/Morris Street, 
and College Street/Terrace Drive.  The traffic study also conducted traffic counts in March 
2013, and then seasonally adjusted the numbers to account for traffic variations per the 
procedure in ODOT’s Analysis Procedures Manual.  The traffic study found that existing 
facilities would be capable of handling the traffic while still operating at a satisfactory 
volume-to-capacity ratio and no mitigations are recommended for the area.  One letter brought 
up the fact of overgrown vegetation around the intersection of College Street and Terrace 
Drive, which is largely in ODOT right-of-way and jurisdiction; city staff can forward notice of 
the issue to ODOT and Yamhill County.   

This property was annexed into the city of Newberg by vote in November 2008.  In October 
2010, City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2010-2730, which amended the Newberg 
Comprehensive Plan and Newberg Development Code to meet planned densities and 
encourage needed housing types.  The Ordinance states the Newberg Planning Commission 
held seven hearings to consider the changes and ultimately recommended that City Council 
adopt the amendments.  Among the recommended and adopted changes was the reduction in 
minimum lot sizes from 7,500 square feet to 5,000 square feet for the R-1 zone.  This change 
and the other changes included in the Ordinance were meant to help create and maintain safe, 
decent, affordable housing in Newberg, and to allow future developments to reach or be near 
the city’s planned densities and housing types.   

The proposed subdivision has lot sizes ranging from 5,000 square feet to 7,629 square feet.  
While this proposed subdivision is somewhat higher in density than the adjacent subdivisions, 

11 of 203



 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

it still meets the city’s standard for “low density residential” R-1 zoning per the Development 
Code and would not be considered “high density”.  The nearby adjacent subdivisions to the 
south of this property, Terrace Heights (2008) and Natalie Park #2 (1997), were platted to the 
previous standard of 7,500 square feet minimum lot sizes and have lots ranging from 7,500 – 
8,300 in Natalie Park #2 and from 7,501 – 10,784 square feet in Terrace Heights.  There is a 
common concern that nearby higher density development will negatively impact property 
values.  However, research commonly shows that density does not have much of a role in 
affecting property values; rather, factors such as quality of neighborhood schools, overall 
quality of the housing stock, and general desirability of the area play a larger role.     

We are largely unable to address the neighbor’s concerns about school crowding, as that is the 
Newberg School District’s purview and is not a criterion for approval.  However, notice of the 
proposed subdivision was sent to the School District and they returned the notice with the box 
checked for “reviewed, no conflicts”, so we must assume they are aware of this development 
and are planning for growth accordingly.  This development will also contribute by paying the 
school excise tax to help fund additional capacity.   

There was also a comment raising concerns about water pressure to the subdivision. The 
applicants submitted a preliminary fire flow report indicating the site has adequate domestic 
and fire flow water capability.  As indicated by the Engineering Services Department, further 
domestic water flow calculations will be submitted during the construction plan phase of the 
project to ensure that adequate pressure will be available for the development.   

The proposed subdivision meets the applicable code criteria, with conditions.   

G. PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  The preliminary staff recommendation 
is made in the absence of public hearing testimony, and may be modified subsequent to the 
close of the public hearing.  At this writing, staff recommends the following motion: 

 Move to adopt Planning Commission Order 2013-13, which approves the requested 
subdivision tentative plan with the findings in Exhibit “A” and the attached conditions in 
Exhibit “B”. 

12 of 203



 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

PLANNING COMMISSION ORDER 2013-13 

AN ORDER APPROVING SUB2-12-003 FOR A SUBDIVISION TO BE KNOWN AS TERRA 

ESTATES THAT INCLUDES 44 LOTS AND ONE TRACT, LOCATED AT 3805 TERRACE DRIVE, 
YAMHILL COUNTY TAX LOT 3207-00500 

RECITALS: 

1. Mike Hanks, member of Del Boca Vista, LLC, submitted an application for tentative subdivision 
approval for a subdivision to include 44 lots and one tract, Yamhill County Tax Lot 3207-00500.  
The proposed tract A would be used for a stormwater quality/detention pond to serve the 
subdivision. 

2. The Planning Division received a citizen request to hold a public hearing about the subdivision.     

3. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission held a hearing on July 11, 2013  to 
consider the application.  The Commission considered testimony and deliberated on the item.  The 
Newberg Planning Commission finds that the application meets the applicable criteria as shown in 
the findings attached in Exhibit “A” and must comply with the conditions of approval shown in 
Exhibit “B”. 

The Newberg Planning Commission orders as follows: 

1. The tentative subdivision plan application SUB2-12-003 for the Terra Estates Subdivision is 
hereby approved, subject to the conditions contained in Exhibit “B”.  Exhibit "B" is hereby 
adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

2. The findings attached as Exhibit “A” are hereby adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

3. This order shall be effective July 26, 2013 unless appealed prior to that date.  This order shall 
expire two years after the effective date above if the applicant does not record the final plat by that 
time, unless an extension is granted per Newberg Development Code 15.235.130(B). 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 11th day of July, 2013. 
 
        ATTEST: 

 
Planning Commission Chair     Planning Commission Secretary 

Attached: 
 Exhibit “A”: Findings  
 Exhibit “B”: Conditions  

13 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

Exhibit “A”  
to Planning Commission Order 2013-13 

Findings –File SUB2-12-003 – Terra Estates Subdivision 
 

I. Applicable Subdivision Criteria:  Newberg Development Code 15.235.060(A). 

The Director (Type II) or Planning Commission (Type III) shall approve a 
subdivision of four parcels or more under a Type II or Type III procedure if the 
resulting parcels comply with the following approval criteria: 

 1. Approval does not impede the future best use of the remainder of the 
property under the same ownership or adversely affect the safe and healthful 
development of such remainder or adjoining land or access thereto. 

Finding:  Approval will not impede the future best use of the property as the entirety of the property 
will be divided into buildable lots and a stormwater tract.  Approval of the requested subdivision 
would allow the adjoining land to develop in the future by extending the city’s road network and 
utilities to the edges of the parcel.   

 2. The subdivision complies with this code including but not limited to  
15.340.010 through 15.440.080 and 15.235.030 et seq. 

Finding:  Following compliance with the conditions of approval as shown in Exhibit “B”, the 
subdivision complies with all applicable requirements of the code.  See sections II through IV for 
specific Development Code standards and findings.   

 3. Either: 

 a. Improvements required to be completed prior to final plat 
approval; or 

 b. The sub divider will substantially complete, as defined by city 
policies, required improvements prior to final plat approval, and enter into a 
performance agreement to complete the remaining improvements.  The 
performance agreement shall include security in a form acceptable to the 
city in sufficient amount to insure completion of all required improvements; 
or 

 c. A local improvement district shall have been formed to complete 
the required improvements; or 

 d. The required improvements are contained in a city or other 
government agency capital improvement project that is budgeted and 
scheduled for construction. 

Finding:  The required improvements will either be completed prior to final plat or the developer 
will enter into an agreement with the city for the remainder of the improvements to be completed.  In 

14 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

this case, public improvements include: construction of Morris Street northward through the 
subdivision; construction of Camellia Road and Drèa’s Way east/west through the subdivision; a half 
street improvement to Terrace Drive along the frontage of the subdivision; construction of city water, 
sewer, and stormwater infrastructure throughout the subdivision; and construction of a stormwater 
quality/detention facility to serve the subdivision.  All street improvements will include sidewalk, 
curb, gutter, and planting strip.   

II. Applicable Lot Requirement:   Newberg Development Code 15.405.010, Lot Area; Lot 
Areas per Dwelling Unit 

A. In the following districts, each lot or development site shall have an area as shown 
below except as otherwise permitted by this code: 

1. In the R-1 district, each lot or development site shall have a minimum area of 
5,000 square feet or as may be established by a subdistrict. The average size of lots 
in a subdivision intended for single-family development shall not exceed 10,000 
square feet. 

Finding: The property is all zoned R-1.  The size of the lots in the proposed subdivision range from 
5,000 square feet to 7,629 square feet, and the subdivision has an overall average lot size of 5,663 
square feet, which meets the criteria.   

III. Applicable Lot Requirements – Newberg Development Code 15.405.030 Lot Dimensions 
and Frontage 

A. Width. Widths of lots shall conform to the standards of this code. 

B. Depth to Width Ratio. Each lot and parcel shall have an average depth between 
the front and rear lines of not more than two and one-half times the average width 
between the side lines. Depths of lots shall conform to the standards of this code. 
Development of lots under 15,000 square feet are exempt from the lot depth to 
width ratio requirement. 

C. Area. Lot sizes shall conform to standards set forth in this code. Lot area 
calculations shall not include area contained in public or private streets as defined 
by this code. 

D. Frontage. 

1. No lot or development site shall have less than the following lot frontage 
standards: 

a. Each lot or development site shall have either frontage on a public 
street for a distance of at least 25 feet or have access to a public street 
through an easement that is at least 25 feet wide. No new private 
streets, as defined in NMC 15.05.030, shall be created to provide 
frontage or access. 

15 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

b. Each lot in an R-2 and R-3 zone shall have a minimum width of 
30 feet at the front building line. 

c. Each lot in an R-1, AI, or RP zone shall have a minimum width of 
50 feet at the front building line. 

d. Each lot in an AR zone shall have a minimum width of 45 feet at 
the front building line. 

Finding:  Each proposed lot meets the required width for the R-1 zone and all have adequate 
frontage on a public street.  Lots 7, 8, 25, 34, and 36 must have buildings facing the wide section of 
the lot in order to comply with the criterion. Therefore, lots 7 and 8 are conditioned to have houses 
facing Terrace Drive; lots 25 and 34 are conditioned to have houses facing Morris Street; and lot 36 
is conditioned to have a house facing Camellia Road.   

IV. Applicable Development Standards  

NDC 15.510.040:  Water Supply.  All lots and parcels within subdivisions and 
partitions shall be served by the water system of the City of Newberg. 

 NDC 15.510.050:  Sewage.  All lots and parcels within subdivisions and partitions 
shall, where practicable, as determined by the Director, in accordance with the 
provisions of this Code, be served by the sewage system of the City. 

NDC 15.510.060:  Land Surface Drainage.  Such grading shall be done and such 
drainage facilities shall be constructed by the land divider as are adequate for the 
purpose of proper drainage of the partition or subdivision, of areas affected 
thereby, and for the preservation of healthful and convenient surroundings and 
conditions for residents of the subdivision or partition, and for the general public, 
in accordance with specifications adopted by the City Council under 15.510.030. 

NDC 15.505.030:  Streets and Alleys. The land divider or developer shall grade and 
pave all streets and alleys in the subdivision or partition to the width specified in 
15.505.060, and provide for drainage of all such streets and alleys, construct curbs 
and gutters within the subdivision or partition in accordance with specifications 
adopted by the City Council under 15.510.030.  Such improvements shall be 
constructed to specifications of the City under the supervision and direction of the 
Director.  It shall be the responsibility of the land divider or developer to provide 
street signs 

NDC 15.505.040:  Existing Streets.  A subdivision, partition or development 
requiring a Type II design review abutting or adjacent to an existing road of 
inadequate width, shall dedicate additional right-of-way to and improve the street to 
the width specified in 15.505.060. 

NDC 15.505.210:  Sidewalks.  Sidewalks shall be located and constructed in 
accordance with the provisions of 15.510.030. Minimum width is five feet. 

16 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

NDC 15.505.220.(A):  Public Walkways.  The review body for a design review or 
land division may require easements for and construction of public walkways 
where such walkway is needed for the public safety and convenience or where the 
walkway is necessary to meet the standards of this code or a walkway plan.  Public 
walkways are to connect to cul-de-sacs, to pass through oddly shaped or unusually 
long blocks, to provide for networks of public paths according to adopted plans, or 
to provide access to schools, parks or other community destinations or public areas 
of such design, width, and location as reasonably required to facilitate public use.  
Where possible, said dedications may also be employed to accommodate public 
utilities. 

NDC 15.510.070:  Street Trees.  Street trees shall be provided adjacent to all public 
rights-of-way abutting or within a subdivision or partition.  Street trees shall be 
installed in accordance with the provisions of 15.420.010(B) (4). 

Finding:  All of the proposed lots will be served by an extension of city sewer and water facilities.  
The existing 8-inch sanitary sewer line in Terrace Drive will be extended north and west “to and 
through” the property in Terrace Drive and Camellia Road in order to serve future development on 
adjacent properties.  The sewer line will also be extended west on Drèa’s Way and south down 
Morris Street from Camellia Road.  The existing 8-inch water line will be extended north in both 
Terrace Drive and Morris Street, looped through the site, and similarly extended “to and through” to 
the edges of the property.  There is an existing fire hydrant at the north edge of the property in 
Terrace Drive; two new fire hydrants are planned for the north and south boundaries of Morris Street 
in the subdivision.  The applicant submitted a preliminary fire flow report indicating there was 
adequate domestic and fire flow capacity.  The applicant will be conditioned to submit further 
calculations conforming to Fire Department and Building Division standards indicating minimum 
service requirements will be met.   

In accordance with the city’s new stormwater standards, the development will include a tract set 
aside for a stormwater quality/detention pond facility to serve the subdivision.  There will be new 
stormwater lines installed at various points in the subdivision to collect the stormwater.  Stormwater 
will be conveyed from the detention pond to the existing creek.  As conditioned, the outfall will have 
erosion control measures to protect against water velocity and the design must be approved by the 
Engineering Services Department.  The detention pond facility will be privately owned and 
maintained with a public storm drainage easement, and must be designed to Clean Water Services 
Standards and approved by the Engineering Services Department.  A private maintenance agreement 
will be required, as conditioned.       

Morris Street, Camellia Road, and Drèa’s Way are all standard local streets with a 54-foot right-of-
way.  All will be fully improved with sidewalk, curb, gutter, and planter strip.  As conditioned, all 
sidewalks are setback behind the planter strip.  Terrace Drive required a right-of-way dedication of 
10 feet along the frontage, and will be improved with a half-street improvement to widen the paved 
area and add sidewalk, curb, gutter, and planter strip along the frontage.  All public streets will have 
street trees in accordance with the code.  In addition, a paved pedestrian path will be built in the 
public access easement between lots 4, 5, 10, and 11.  The pedestrian path will be privately 
maintained and maintenance responsibility will need to be included in the CC&Rs, as conditioned.   

17 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

NDC 15.505.160: Platting standards for blocks.  B. Maximum Block Length and 
Perimeter. The maximum length and perimeters of blocks in the zones listed below shall be 
according to the following table. The review body for a subdivision, partition, conditional 
use permit, or a Type II design review may require installation of streets or walkways as 
necessary to meet the standards below. 

Zone(s) Maximum Block 
Length 

Maximum Block 
Perimeter 

R-1 800 feet 2,000 feet 

R-2, R-3, RP, I 1,200 feet 3,000 feet 

 

Finding: The proposal meets the block length and perimeter standard.  Camellia Road is 640 feet 
from Terrace Drive to the west edge of the property.  Morris Street is 722 feet from Camellia Road 
south to Natalie Drive.  The block bounded by Camellia Road/Morris Street/Drèa’s Way/Terrace 
Drive is 1440 feet in perimeter length.  The block bounded by Drèa’s Way/Morris Street/Natalie 
Drive/Dahlia Street/Petunia Drive/Terrace Drive is 1792 feet in perimeter length.  The tentative plat 
shows a paved pedestrian path between lots 4, 5, 10, and 11 that will contribute to the overall 
connectivity through the subdivision.    

V. Applicable Newberg Comprehensive Plan Section:  Public Facilities and Services, All 
Facilities and Services Policy #1.h.  

Finding:  According to the finding above for Development Code requirements for infrastructure, the 
proposed subdivision complies with the policy to have paved streets, curbs, pedestrian ways, water, 
sewer, storm drainage, street lights and underground utilities, and meets the intent of the Newberg 
Comprehensive Plan.   

VI. Conclusion:  Based on the above findings, the application meets the goals and policies of the 
Newberg Comprehensive Plan and the required criteria within the Newberg Development 
Code for a subdivision, subject to completion of the attached conditions. 

18 of 203

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=47
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=46
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=275
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=223
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=81
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=81
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271


 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

Exhibit B  
to Planning Commission Order 2012-02 

Conditions of Approval – File SUB2-12-003 – Terra Estates Subdivision 

A. The applicant must provide the following information for review and approval prior to 
construction of any improvements: 

1. Revised Tentative Plan:  Provide a revised tentative subdivision plan that shows the 
following: 

a. Temporary turnarounds for roads dead-ending after each phase.   

b. The new Camellia Road section needs to align with the existing Camellia 
Road to the east.  The Development Code requires either alignment or for 
intersections to be offset by a minimum of 100 feet, centerline to centerline.   

2. Construction Plans: Submit engineered construction plans for review and approval 
of all public utilities.  Plans should be drawn to show storm information on one sheet; 
water and sanitary on another sheet.  Please note that additional Engineering Services 
Department plan review application and fees apply for review of plans.  The plans 
must note the following: 

a. Sanitary Sewer/Water: 

i. Submit detailed utility construction plans for review and approval for 
all public water meters, sanitary sewer mains, and sanitary sewer 
laterals. 

ii. Sanitary sewer facilities in Terrace Drive shall be constructed to serve 
future development in the basin.  A basin plan shall prepared by 
engineer of record and submitted to the Engineering Services 
Department. 

 
iii. An abbreviated fire flow calculation dated July 25, 2013 for the project 

site was submitted by the applicant.  Fire flow calculations will be 
required to be submitted to the Engineering Services Department for 
the proposed subdivision that conform to the City of Newberg Fire 
Department standards, indicating  that each lot in the new subdivision 
will meet the minimum service requirements. 
 

iv. Domestic water flow calculations will be required to be submitted to 
the Engineering Services Department for the proposed subdivision that 
conform to the City Building Division requirements indicating that 
minimum service pressures are available at the future highest fixtures 
in the development. 

 
b. Streets: 

19 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

i. Full improvements for Morris Street, Camellia Road, and Drèa’s Way, 
including curb, gutter, planter strip, and sidewalk.  Note: all sidewalks 
are to be setback behind the planter strip.   

ii. Half street improvement to the west side of Terrace Drive along the 
frontage, to include curb, gutter, planter strip, and sidewalk.  Note: the 
sidewalk must be setback behind the planter strip.   

iii. Street names should be “Morris Street”, “Camellia Road”, and “Drèa’s 
Way”. 

iv. Each street intersection in the proposed subdivision shall meet 
AASHTO vertical and horizontal intersection sight distance 
requirements, as verified by the engineer of record.  

c. Stormwater: 

i. The proposed stormwater quality/detention pond facility shall be fully 
constructed with the first phase of development.  Applicant’s Civil 
Engineer is to meet with Engineering Services Department Staff to 
review the proposed design.  The stormwater facility should be 
designed according to Clean Water Services standards, and the control 
structure shall discharge into a rock armored open channel/ditch to 
transmit the stormwater flows to the receiving stream.   
 

ii. The proposed stormwater tract shall be under ownership separate from 
the City and subject to a recorded public storm drainage easement over 
its entirety. A City standard private stormwater facility maintenance 
agreement shall be completed by the applicant and recorded for private 
maintenance of the stormwater facility.  The agreement shall state the 
responsible party(s) for the required facility maintenance.   
 

iii. All stormwater detention and water quality hydraulic and sediment 
control structures shall have adequate maintenance access for the City 
vactor truck within 10 feet of the proposed structure. 
  

iv. Delineate the stream corridor and provide a plan to protect the stream 
corridor during site grading and construction. 

3. Stormwater Facility Maintenance Agreement: Provide a stormwater facility 
maintenance agreement for private maintenance of the stormwater facility.  The 
agreement must state the responsible party(s) for the required facility maintenance.   

4. Geotechnical Report.  Provide a geotechnical engineering report for the subdivision.  

5. Grading: If required, obtain a DEQ 1200-C permit and a city grading permit prior to 
site grading. 

20 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

6. Stream Corridor Protection Plan.  Provide a plan to protect the stream corridor 
during construction with erosion control measures.   

7. Stormwater Outfall. Provide an erosion control plan for the proposed stormwater 
outfall area into the existing creek to reduce water velocity and speed.  

B. The applicant must complete the following prior to final plat approval.  

1. Substantially Complete the Construction Improvements:  Prior to final plat 
approval, the applicant must substantially complete the construction improvements 
and secure for them in accordance with city policy.  Complete construction and call 
for a walk-through inspection with the Engineering Services Department (503-537-
1273).  In addition to those items listed below, the inspector will also be looking for 
completion of items such as street signs, street lights, etc. 

a. Construct all water meters, sanitary sewer mains, and sanitary sewer laterals as 
shown on the approved utility construction plans. 

b. Construct the stormwater system as shown in the approved plans.   

c. Construct all public roads and the public pathway identified on the approved 
tentative plat.   

2. Street Tree Bond: Provide a landscape plan that identifies all planned tree species for 
street trees in accordance with NDC 15.420.010.  A landscape bond will be required 
for installation of street trees prior to final plat approval. 

3. Construct Fence. Construct a fence along the southern boundary of the subdivision.   

4. Existing Wells/Septic: Decommission any wells or septic tanks currently on the 
property. 

C. Final Plat Application:  In accordance with NDC 15.235.150, submit the following for 
City review of the final plat application.  Construction improvements should be 
substantially complete at this point. 

1. Application Materials: 
a. Type I application form (found either at City Hall or on the website – 

www.newbergoregon.gov in the Planning Forms section) with the appropriate 
fees. 

b. A current title report (within 6 months old) for the property.  Include copies of 
all existing easements and CC&Rs that pertain to the property. 

c. A written response to these Conditions of Approval that specifies how each 
condition has been met. 

d. Two blue-line copies of the final subdivision plat for preliminary review by 
the City Engineering Services Department.  The Engineering Services 
Department will make red-line comments on these sheets for your 
surveyor/engineer to correct prior to printing final Mylar copies. 

21 of 203

http://www.newbergoregon.gov/


 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

 
2. Dedications/Easements Required:  The plat must show the following: 

a. 10 ft public utility easements along all street frontages. 

b. A 15-foot wide public access and storm drainage easement between lots 4, 5, 
10, and 11. 

c. The storm drainage easement along the northern edge of the subdivision as 
shown on the tentative plat.  In addition, the entirety of Tract A shall have a 
public surface water and public storm drainage easement.   

3. Documents Required:  Provide the following documents for review and approval: 

a. Stormwater facility maintenance agreement for private maintenance of the 
stormwater facility.  The agreement must state the responsible party(s) for the 
required facility maintenance.   

b. A signed and notarized performance agreement that assures construction and 
performance in accordance with the approved final plans. 

c. A bond for street tree planting in an amount to be approved by the Planning 
Division. 

d. A final draft copy of Codes, Covenants and Restrictions (CC&Rs) for the 
subdivision.  Planning staff will review the proposed CC&Rs for compliance 
with City Code prior to recordation.  The CC&Rs must include maintenance 
responsibility for the paved pedestrian path between lots 4, 5, 10, and 11.   

4. Final Mylar Copies of the Subdivision Plat:  Submit final mylar copies of the 
corrected final subdivision plat (after red-line corrections have been made). 

a. Two sets (one original and one copy) of the plat.  Original plats shall be in 
substantial conformity to the approved tentative plan and shall conform to the 
Yamhill County Surveyor’s specifications and requirements.  Scale 
requirements shall be the same as specified for the tentative plans.  Note: 
Newberg Development Code requires a mylar copy of the recorded plat.  To 
complete this requirement, you may either record a mylar copy of the plat for 
the city or you may have your surveyor/engineer print a copy of the recorded 
plat on mylar.  This requirement must be met to complete the final plat 
process, and building permits will not be issued until the mylar copy is 
received. 

D. The final plat process must be completed prior to issuance of any building permits.  The 
City will review the final plat application after the applicant has completed all of the 
conditions of approval listed above.   

22 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

1. City Review: In accordance with NDC 15.235.160 and 15.235.180, Planning staff 
shall determine that: 
a. Streets, roads, and alleys for public use are dedicated without any reservation 

or restriction other than reversionary rights upon vacation of any such street or 
road and easements for public utilities. 

b. The proposal complies with this code. 
c. The plat is in substantial conformity with the provisions of the tentative plan 

for the subdivision, as approved. 
d. The plat contains a donation to the public of all common improvements, 

including but not limited to streets, roads, parks, sewage disposal and water 
supply systems. 

e. Explanations of all common improvements required as conditions of approval 
of the tentative plan of the subdivision have been accounted for and referenced 
on the plat. 

f. There will exist an adequate quantity and quality of water and an adequate 
sewage disposal system to support the proposed use of the land described in 
the plat. 

g. Either: 
i. Improvements as required by this code or as a condition of tentative 

plan approval have been filed with the Director; or 
ii. A performance agreement (bond) or suitable substitute as agreed upon 

by the city and applicant has been filed with the Director in sufficient 
amount to insure the completion of all required improvements; or 

iii. A petition for improvements has been properly executed by the 
applicant who is effecting the subdivision and will be assessed for said 
improvements. 

h. Taxes, as well as public liens, assessments and fees, with respect to the 
subdivision area have been paid, or adequate guarantee has been provided 
assuring said taxes, liens, assessments and fees will be paid prior to 
recordation. 

i. The subdivider has entered into agreement with the city relating to completion 
of improvements, payment of sewer and water hookup fees, inspection fees, 
public lands payments, monumentation or any other elements deemed relevant 
to the purpose of this or any other city ordinance, state statute or federal law. 

j. If the conditions set at the time of tentative land division approval are not 
fulfilled and the final plat or final map is not recorded by the tentative plan 
expiration date, the tentative land division approval is null and void. 

 
2. Required Signatures: According to NDC 15.235.180, approval of a final subdivision 

plat must be acknowledged and signed by the following: 
a. Planning and Building Director 
b. The County Assessor 
c. The County Surveyor 
d. The City Recorder 

23 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

3. Recording: Deliver the approved subdivision plat to the office of the County Clerk 
for recording.  The County Clerk’s office is located at 414 NE Evans St, 
McMinnville, OR 97128.    

4. Completion: Return an exact mylar copy of the recorded plat to the Director to 
complete the subdivision process.  Note: the city will not issue building permits or 
other permits for construction on individual lots until the mylar copy is returned.   

E. Development Notes: 

1. Postal Service: The applicant shall submit plans to the Newberg Postmaster for 
approval of proposed mailbox delivery locations.  Contact the Newberg Post Office 
for assistance at 503-554-8014. 

2. PGE: PGE can provide electrical service to this project under terms of the current 
tariff which will involve developer expense and easements.  Contact the Service & 
Design Supervisor, PGE, at 503-463-4348. 

3. Frontier: The developer must coordinate trench/conduit requirements with Frontier. 
Contact the Engineering Services Department, Frontier, at 541-269-3375. 

4. Waste Management: Contact Waste Management for garbage service to the new 
lots. 

5. Addresses:  The Planning Division will assign addresses for the new subdivision.  
Planning Division staff will send out notice of the new addresses after they receive a 
recorded mylar copy of the final subdivision plat.  

6. Building Plans for Lots 7, 8, 25, 34, and 36: The building plans for these lots must 
show the front of the house facing the widest portion of the lot.  Lots 7 and 8 must 
face Terrace Drive, lots 25 and 34 must face Morris Street, and lot 36 must face 
Camellia Road.   

7. Street Trees on Corner Lots: Street trees on corner lots shall be adjusted to not 
interfere with street signs as necessary.   

8. Fence: Consider constructing a six foot tall opaque fence along the southern boundary 
of the subdivision.   

 

24 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

Attachment 1:  Aerial Photo 
 

Note: the buildings on the subject property shown in this photo have been removed. 

25 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

Attachment 2:  Tentative Plan 
 

 

 

26 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

Attachment 3:  Contours Map 
 

 

27 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 

Z:\FILES.S\2012\SUB2-12-003 Terra Estates\Terra Estates staff report_2013-0628.doc 

Attachment 4:  Zoning Map 

 

 

 

28 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

29 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

30 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

31 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

32 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

33 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

34 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

35 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

36 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

37 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

38 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

39 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

40 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

41 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

42 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

43 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

44 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

45 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

46 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

47 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

48 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

49 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

50 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

51 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

52 of 203



Attachment 5: Public Comment

53 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

54 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

55 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

56 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

57 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

58 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

59 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

60 of 203



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Attachment 6: Application

61 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

62 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

63 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

64 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

65 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

66 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

67 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

68 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

69 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

70 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

71 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

72 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

73 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

74 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

75 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

76 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

77 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

78 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

79 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

80 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

81 of 203



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Attachment 6: Application

82 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

83 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

84 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

85 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

86 of 203



TAX LOT 3 2 07 500

PROPOSED 44 LOT SUBDIVISION

CITY OF NEWBERG, YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

"TERRA"

T
E

R
R

A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
4

4
 
L

O
T

 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

T
A

X
 
L

O
T

 
3

 
2

 
0

7
 
5

0
0

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
N

E
W

B
E

R
G

Y
A

M
H

I
L

L
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
O

R
E

G
O

N

7

C
O

V
E

R
 
S

H
E

E
T

1

SITE INFORMATION

VICINITY MAP

DRAWING INDEX

THIS

SITE

PROJECT CONTACTS

Attachment 6: Application

87 of 203



T
E

R
R

A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
4

4
 
L

O
T

 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

T
A

X
 
L

O
T

 
3

 
2

 
0

7
 
5

0
0

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
N

E
W

B
E

R
G

Y
A

M
H

I
L

L
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
O

R
E

G
O

N

7

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
C

O
N

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

&
 
D

E
M

O
L

I
T

I
O

N
 
P

L
A

N

2

Attachment 6: Application

88 of 203



T
E

R
R

A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
4

4
 
L

O
T

 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

T
A

X
 
L

O
T

 
3

 
2

 
0

7
 
5

0
0

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
N

E
W

B
E

R
G

Y
A

M
H

I
L

L
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
O

R
E

G
O

N

7

A
E

R
I
A

L
 
V

I
E

W

3

Attachment 6: Application

89 of 203



T
E

R
R

A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
4

4
 
L

O
T

 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

T
A

X
 
L

O
T

 
3

 
2

 
0

7
 
5

0
0

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
N

E
W

B
E

R
G

Y
A

M
H

I
L

L
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
O

R
E

G
O

N

7

S
I
T

E
 
&

U
T

I
L

I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N

4

Attachment 6: Application

90 of 203



T
E

R
R

A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
4

4
 
L

O
T

 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

T
A

X
 
L

O
T

 
3

 
2

 
0

7
 
5

0
0

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
N

E
W

B
E

R
G

Y
A

M
H

I
L

L
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
O

R
E

G
O

N

7

G
R

A
D

I
N

G
 
&

 
E

R
O

S
I
O

N

C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 
P

L
A

N

5

Attachment 6: Application

91 of 203



T
E

R
R

A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
4

4
 
L

O
T

 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

T
A

X
 
L

O
T

 
3

 
2

 
0

7
 
5

0
0

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
N

E
W

B
E

R
G

Y
A

M
H

I
L

L
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
O

R
E

G
O

N

7

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y

P
L

A
T

6

Attachment 6: Application

92 of 203



T
E

R
R

A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
4

4
 
L

O
T

 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

T
A

X
 
L

O
T

 
3

 
2

 
0

7
 
5

0
0

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
N

E
W

B
E

R
G

Y
A

M
H

I
L

L
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
O

R
E

G
O

N

7

P
H

A
S

I
N

G

P
L

A
N

7

Attachment 6: Application

93 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

94 of 203



 

Terra Subdivision – Newberg, OR 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 
Executive Summary  .......................................................................................................................  3 

 

Project Description 

Introduction ...........................................................................................................................  4 

Location Description .............................................................................................................  4 

Public Transit ........................................................................................................................  5 

Traffic Counts .......................................................................................................................  5 

 

Trip Generation & Distribution 

Trip Generation .....................................................................................................................  8 

Trip Distribution ...................................................................................................................  8 

 

Safety Analysis 

Warrant Analysis ................................................................................................................  10 

Sight Distance Analysis ......................................................................................................  10 

Crash Data Analysis ............................................................................................................  10 

 

Operational Analysis 

Background Traffic .............................................................................................................  11 

Capacity Analysis ...............................................................................................................  14 

 

Conclusions...................................................................................................................................  15 

 

Appendix ......................................................................................................................................  16 

  

Attachment 6: Application

95 of 203



 

Terra Subdivision – Newberg, OR 3 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
 
1. A 44-lot residential subdivision has been proposed for a 7.67 acre plot of land located at 3805 N 

Terrace Drive in Newberg, Oregon.  The property is located on the northwest corner of the inter-

section of N Terrace Drive and Petunia Street. 

 

2. The subdivision of 44 residential lots will consist of single-family dwellings.  These residences 

are expected to generate 33 trips in the morning peak hour and 44 trips in the evening peak hour. 

 

3. A left-turn refuge is currently in place along N College Street at N Terrace Drive.  No other turn 

lanes are warranted.  No new traffic signals are warranted. 

 

4. The available sight distance at the study intersection was measured to be in excess of 800 feet in 

both travel directions, exceeding the minimum intersection sight distance requirement of 445 

feet.  No visibility mitigations are recommended.   

 

5. A detailed observation of the crash history at the study intersection shows no trends that are in-

dicative of safety issues that need to be addressed.  No safety mitigations are recommended. 

 

6. The intersection of N College Street at N Terrace Drive is projected to operate at a satisfactory 

volume-to-capacity ratio through the year 2015 regardless of additional trips resulting from the 

proposed development.  No operational mitigations are recommended. 

 

 

 

  

 

  

Attachment 6: Application

96 of 203



 

Terra Subdivision – Newberg, OR 4 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
 
INTRODUCTION 

 

A 7.67 acre plot of land located at 3805 N Terrace Drive in Newberg, Oregon, has been proposed for 

subdivision.  The subject property is border by N Terrace Drive to the east, Petunia Street to the 

south, and agricultural uses to the west and north.  The proposed land division will contain 44 lots 

developed with single-family dwellings.   

 

This report looks at the traffic impacts of the proposed subdivision on the transportation system in 

the vicinity of the site.  The purpose of this report is to provide an analysis that addresses the impacts 

on adjacent local residential streets as well as the operation of a nearby study intersection to ensure 

safe and efficient performance.  

 

All supporting data and calculations are included in the appendix to this report. 

 

 

LOCATION DESCRIPTION 

 

The City of Newberg requires analysis at the intersection of N Terrace Drive and N College Street 

(Oregon Highway 219) in order to assess site impacts during the weekday morning and evening peak 

traffic hours.  Discussions of the site impacts to the local residential streets and the intersections of N 

College Street at E Foothills Drive and N College Street at E Mountainview Drive were also request-

ed. 

 

N College Street, or also known as Oregon Highway 219 or the Hillsboro-Silverton Highway, is un-

der the jurisdiction of the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) and is classified as a Dis-

trict Highway.  It is generally a three-lane roadway with a center two-way left-turn lane.  North of 

the intersection with N Terrace Drive, the roadway narrows to two lanes as it leaves the Newberg 

city-limits.  The highway has a posted speed limit of 40 mph in the vicinity of Terrace Drive that 

reduces to 35 mph at E Foothills Drive.  Curbs and sidewalks are installed along the east side of the 

roadway and intermittently on the west side.   

 

N Terrace Drive is under the jurisdiction of the City of Newberg and is classified as a Local Street.  

It is a two-lane roadway with a statutory residential speed limit of 25 mph.  Curbs and sidewalks are 

installed on the west side of the street between N College Street and Petunia Street.  No bike lanes or 

on-street parking is provided. 

 

Morris Street is under the jurisdiction of the City of Newberg and is classified as a Local Street.  It is 

a two-lane roadway with a statutory residential speed limit of 25 mph.  Curbs, sidewalks, and on-

street parking are provided on both sides of the facility.  Currently, the roadway dead-ends at the 

subject property; however, the development plan calls for the internal street network to connect to 

Morris Street. 

 

Attachment 6: Application

97 of 203



 

Terra Subdivision – Newberg, OR 5 

The intersection of N College Street at N Terrace Drive is a three-legged intersection controlled by a 

STOP sign on N Terrace Drive.  The approach from N Terrace Drive and the southbound approach 

from N College Street each have a single shared lane for all turning movements.  The northbound 

approach from N College Street consists of a through lane and a left-turn refuge.  

 

A vicinity map showing the project site and the study area intersection is shown in Figure 1 on page 

six. 

 

 

PUBLIC TRANSIT 

 

Yamhill County Transit Area Fixed Route 5, Newberg Foothills Drive, provides bus service along N 

College Street and N Main Street with a regular stop on the corner of E Foothills Drive and N Main 

Street.  The bus operates weekdays from 7:30 AM to 5:30 PM with typical headways of an hour.  No 

weekend service is provided. 

 

 

TRAFFIC COUNTS 

 

Traffic counts were conducted at the intersection of N College Street at N Terrace Drive on March 

20
th
 of 2013 from 4:00 PM to 6:00 PM and on March 21

st
 from 7:00 AM to 9:00 AM.  Data was used 

from the morning peak of 7:00 AM to 8:00 AM and from the evening peak of 4:50 PM to 5:50 PM.   

 

Since N College Street is under ODOT jurisdiction and traffic counts were performed in March, a 

seasonal adjustment factor was applied to account for season traffic variations on the facility, as per 

the procedure in ODOT’s Analysis Procedures Manual (APM).  Since no Automatic Traffic Record-

er was found nearby and the characteristics of the facility were not similar to another Automatic 

Traffic Recorder, the Seasonal Trend Table was referenced.  Using the table, a seasonal adjustment 

factor of 1.067 was calculated based on the Commuter seasonal trend of the roadway.   

 

Figure 2 on page seven shows the seasonally adjusted traffic volumes at the study intersection. 

Attachment 6: Application

98 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

99 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

100 of 203



 

Terra Subdivision – Newberg, OR 8 

TRIP GENERATION & DISTRIBUTION 

 
 
TRIP GENERATION 

 
To estimate the number of trips that will be generated by the proposed development, trip rates from 

TRIP GENERATION, Ninth Edition, published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE), 

were used.   

 

The development plan proposes the construction of 44 single-family dwellings.  To estimate the trip 

generation of the subject property, trip rates from land-use code 210, Single-Family Detached Hous-

ing, was used based on the number of dwelling units. 

 

The trip generation calculations show that the proposed development will generate 33 trips during 

the morning peak hour with eight trips entering and 25 trips exiting the site.  During the evening 

peak hour, the property is projected to generate 44 trips with 28 entering and 16 exiting the site.  The 

following table offers a summary of the trip generation.  Detailed trip generation calculations are 

included in the appendix to this report.  

 

Trip Generation Summary
ITE

Code In Out Total In Out Total

Proposed Development

Single-Family Detached Housing 210 44 units 8 25 33 28 16 44

Morning Peak Hour Evening Peak Hour
Size

 
 

  

TRIP DISTRIBUTION 

 

The subject property is located just off of Oregon Highway 219 which connects Hillsboro to the cen-

ter of Newberg.  It is expected that the majority of the traffic originating and terminating at the site 

will utilize the highway to travel to and from their destinations.  It is also expected that some traffic 

will travel to and from the west on E Foothills Drive to reach N Main Street, which spans north and 

south through most of Newberg and connects to Oregon Highway 240. 

 

Since Morris Street will be connected to the internal street system of the subject property, it is esti-

mated that 25% of the trips traveling to and from the south on N College Street will use the connec-

tion between E Foothills Drive and Morris Street to access the site.  It is projected that nine site trips 

will utilize Morris Street in the AM peak hour and 13 site trips will utilize the street in the PM peak 

hour.  Traffic between Morris Street and N College Street on E Foothills Drive is expected to in-

crease by six trips in the AM peak hour and eight trips in the PM peak hour. 

 

The trip distribution and assignment for the proposed development is shown in Figure 3 on page 9.   

Attachment 6: Application

101 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

102 of 203



 

Terra Subdivision – Newberg, OR 10 

SAFETY ANALYSIS 
 

 

WARRANT ANALYSIS 

 

Left-turn lane warrants and traffic signal warrants were examined for the intersection of N College 

Street and N Terrace Drive.  A left-turn refuge for northbound traffic on N College Street is already 

provided with the center two-way left-turn lane, so no further examination of left-turn lane warrants 

was performed.    

 

Low volumes were observed for both the minor and major street approaches at the intersection.  By 

examination, traffic signal warrants are not projected to be met under any of the analysis scenarios.  

Signalization of the intersection is not recommended. 

 

 

SIGHT DISTANCE 

 

Intersection sight distance requirements were taken from A POLICY ON GEOMETRIC DESIGN OF 

HIGHWAYS AND STREETS, published in 2011 by the American Association of State Highway and 

Transportation Officials (AASHTO).  Sight distance requirements are based on the speed of traffic 

on the major street and the sight distance measurements are based on an eye height of 3.5 feet and an 

approaching driver’s eye height of 3.5 feet above the road, with the driver’s eye 15 feet behind the 

edge of the near-side travel lane.  

 

Based on the posted 40 mph speed limit at the intersection of N College Street at N Terrace Drive, a 

minimum of 445 feet of intersection sight distance is required.  Sight distance from 15 feet behind 

the edge of the near-side travel lane was measured in excess of 800 feet in both travel directions.  

Accordingly, the available sight distance for both approaches is well in excess of the minimum re-

quired for safe and efficient operation of the intersection.  No mitigations are recommended. 

 

 

CRASH DATA ANALYSIS  

 

Using data obtained from ODOT’s Crash Data System, a review was performed for the most recent 

available five years of crash data (2007 – 2011) for the intersection of N College Street at N Terrace 

Drive.  No crashes were found to have occurred at the intersection during the analysis period.  No 

significant safety concerns were identified and no safety mitigations are recommended. 

 

 
  

Attachment 6: Application

103 of 203



 

Terra Subdivision – Newberg, OR 11 

OPERATIONAL ANALYSIS 
 

 
BACKGROUND TRAFFIC 

 

Prior to assigning the site trips to the study intersection, existing volumes were adjusted to account 

for the anticipated growth in the study area that occurs during the construction of the development.  

Background traffic volumes were projected for year 2015 conditions, when the proposed develop-

ment is assumed to be completed and fully occupied. 

 

Future volumes were projected in conformance with the requirements established in ODOT’s APM.  

Based on data from ODOT’s Future Volume Table, a linear growth rate of 2.3 percent per year was 

calculated.  This growth rate was applied over the two-year period to the existing traffic volumes in 

order to determine the expected year 2015 background traffic volumes.  These volumes are shown in 

Figure 4 on page 12.  The background traffic with the addition of site trips from the proposed devel-

opment is shown in Figure 5 on page 13.   

 

Attachment 6: Application

104 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

105 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

106 of 203



 

Terra Subdivision – Newberg, OR 14 

CAPACITY ANALYSIS 

 

To measure the performance of the intersection of N College Street at N Terrace Drive, a capacity 

analysis was conducted.  Since N College Street is under ODOT jurisdiction, their standards based 

on a volume-to-capacity (v/c) ratio were used for evaluation.  The v/c ratio compares the actual (or 

demand) traffic volumes to the potential intersection capacity.  The v/c ratio is expressed as the per-

centage of the capacity that is utilized during the analysis period.  According to the Oregon Highway 

Plan Mobility Standard Guidelines, a v/c ratio of 0.90 or less is required during the peak hours.   

 

The intersection was analyzed using the unsignalized intersection analysis methods in the HIGHWAY 

CAPACITY MANUAL, published by the Transportation Research Board.  The analysis was made for 

the morning and evening peak hours for existing conditions, year 2015 background traffic condi-

tions, and year 2015 background plus site trips from the proposed development. 

 

Currently, the intersection of N College Street at N Terrace Drive operates with a v/c ratio of 0.13 

during the AM peak hour and 0.18 during the PM peak hour.  In two years, the v/c ratio is projected 

to remain unchanged during the AM peak hour and increase slightly to 0.19 during the PM peak 

hour, regardless of the additional traffic resulting from the proposed development. 

 

The results of the capacity analysis, along with the levels of service, delay, and v/c ratios are shown 

in the following table.  Detailed calculations, as well as tables showing the relationships between 

delay and level of service are included in the appendix to this report. 

 

 

LOS Delay (s) v / c LOS Delay (s) v / c

N College St at N Terrace Dr

Existing A 10 0.13 B 10 0.18

Background A 10 0.13 B 11 0.19

Background + Site A 10 0.13 B 11 0.19

CAPACITY ANALYSIS SUMMARY

AM PM

 
 

 
 

 

 

  

Attachment 6: Application

107 of 203



 

Terra Subdivision – Newberg, OR 15 

CONCLUSIONS 
 

The traffic resulting from the proposed development of 7.67 acre property located at 3805 N Terrace 

Drive in Newberg, Oregon, will not cause any significant impact to the transportation network in the 

surrounding area.   

 

The operational analysis of N College Street at N Terrace Drive shows adequate capacity through 

year 2015 regardless of additional trips resulting from the proposed development.  No operational 

mitigations are recommended. 

 

A detailed observation of the crash history at the study intersection shows no trends that are indica-

tive of safety issues that need to be addressed.  No safety mitigations are recommended. 

 

Sight distance was measured to be in excess of 800 feet in both travel directions at the study intersec-

tion, exceeding the 445 feet requirement for intersection sight distance.  No visibility mitigations are 

recommended.  

 

Left-turn lane warrants and traffic signal warrants were examined and were found to be unnecessary 

at the intersection of N College Street at N Terrace Drive.  

 

Based on the detailed analysis, no mitigations are required or recommended for the proposed devel-

opment of 44 single-family dwellings. 

 

  

Attachment 6: Application

108 of 203



 

Terra Subdivision – Newberg, OR 16 

APPENDIX 

Attachment 6: Application

109 of 203



 

 

LEVEL OF SERVICE 

 
 
 Level of service is used to describe the quality of traffic flow. Levels of service A 

to C are considered good, and rural roads are usually designed for level of service C. 

Urban streets and signalized intersections are typically designed for level of service D. 

Level of service E is considered to be the limit of acceptable delay. For unsignalized 

intersections, level of service E is generally considered acceptable. Here is a more 

complete description of levels of service: 

 

 Level of service A: Very low delay at intersections, with all traffic signal cycles 

clearing and no vehicles waiting through more than one signal cycle. On highways, low 

volume and high speeds, with speeds not restricted by other vehicles.  

 

 Level of service B: Operating speeds beginning to be affected by other traffic; 

short traffic delays at intersections. Higher average intersection delay than for level of 

service A resulting from more vehicles stopping.  

 

 Level of service C: Operating speeds and maneuverability closely controlled by 

other traffic; higher delays at intersections than for level of service B due to a significant 

number of vehicles stopping. Not all signal cycles clear the waiting vehicles. This is the 

recommended design standard for rural highways.  

 

 Level of service D: Tolerable operating speeds; long traffic delays occur at in-

tersections. The influence of congestion is noticeable. At traffic signals many vehicles 

stop, and the proportion of vehicles not stopping declines. The number of signal cycle 

failures, for which vehicles must wait through more than one signal cycle, are noticeable. 

This is typically the design level for urban signalized intersections.  

 

 Level of service E: Restricted speeds, very long traffic delays at traffic signals, and 

traffic volumes near capacity. Flow is unstable so that any interruption, no matter how 

minor, will cause queues to form and service to deteriorate to level of service F. Traffic 

signal cycle failures are frequent occurrences. For unsignalized intersections, level of 

service E or better is generally considered acceptable.  

 

 Level of service F: Extreme delays, resulting in long queues which may interfere 

with other traffic movements. There may be stoppages of long duration, and speeds may 

drop to zero. There may be frequent signal cycle failures. Level of service F will typically 

result when vehicle arrival rates are greater than capacity. It is considered unacceptable by 

most drivers.  

Attachment 6: Application

110 of 203



LEVEL OF SERVICE CRITERIA

FOR SIGNALIZED INTERSECTIONS

LEVEL CONTROL DELAY

OF PER VEHICLE

SERVICE (Seconds)

A <10

B 10-20

C 20-35

D 35-55

E 55-80

F >80

LEVEL OF SERVICE CRITERIA

FOR UNSIGNALIZED INTERSECTIONS

LEVEL CONTROL DELAY

OF PER VEHICLE

SERVICE (Seconds)

A <10

B 10-15

C 15-25

D 25-35

E 35-50

F >50

Attachment 6: Application

111 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

112 of 203



03
17

20
13

Yamhill County Transit Area 
535 NE 5th Street 
McMinnville, OR 97128  
phone: 503.474.4900 or 503.538.7433 
web: www.yctransitarea.org  
email: saunderst@co.yamhill.or.us 

Newberg Weekdays
How to read this schedule:
Find the stop where you will board the bus.
Read top to bottom to find scheduled departure 
times at the listed stops.
Read from left to right to find how long it takes 
to travel between stops.

Place correct fare in farebox; exact fare only – 
drivers do not carry change.
You may flag down a bus along any city fixed 
route. Schedules are subject to change without 
notice. For the most current schedule check the 
YCTA website.

Holiday Schedule:
YCTA buses do not operate on the following 
holidays: New Year’s Day, Memorial Day, 
Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, 
and Christmas Day.

Pets: 
Service animals are always welcome. Pets 
may travel in a pet carrier as long as they 
present no health or safety risk.

Key:
AM schedule in regular print. 
PM schedule in bold print.

Fixed Routes – Flag Stops are allowed on Rts. 5&7

Newberg Providence, Fixed Route 7 - Weekdays

N
ap

s 
Th

rif
tw

ay

C
ol

on
ia

l 
Vi

lla
ge

C
PR

D
/F

IS
H

 
(E

lli
ot

t 
Rd

)

Fr
ed

 M
ey

er

PC
C

Pr
ov

id
en

ce
 

H
os

pi
ta

l

Sa
fe

w
ay

N
ap

s 
Th

rif
tw

ay

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

7:00 7:04 7:09 7:13 7:15 7:19 7:23 7:29

8:00 8:04 8:09 8:13 8:15 8:19 8:23 8:29

9:00 9:04 9:09 9:13 9:15 9:19 9:23 9:29

11:00 11:04 11:09 11:13 11:15 11:19 11:23 11:29

12:00 12:04 12:09 12:13 12:15 12:19 12:23 12:29

1:00 1:04 1:09 1:13 1:15 1:19 1:23 1:29

2:00 2:04 2:09 2:13 2:15 2:19 2:23 2:29

3:00 3:04 3:09 3:13 3:15 3:19 3:23 3:29

4:00 4:04 4:09 4:13 4:15 4:19 4:23 4:29

5:00 5:04 5:09 5:13 5:15 5:19 5:23 5:29

6:00 6:04 6:09 6:13 6:15 6:19 6:23 6:29

Newberg Foothills Drive, Fixed Route 5 – Weekdays

N
ap

s 
Th

rif
tw

ay

G
eo

rg
e 

Fo
x 

(M
er

id
ia

n 
St

)

Th
e 

O
ak

s

Se
ni

or
 

C
en

te
r

M
ai

n 
an

d 
C

ol
um

bi
a

W
oo

dv
ie

w
 

Vi
lla

ge

N
ap

s 
Th

rif
tw

ay
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

7:30 7:33 7:34 7:39 7:42 7:50 7:55

8:30 8:33 8:34 8:39 8:42 8:50 8:55

9:30 9:33 9:34 9:39 9:42 9:50 9:55

10:30 10:33 10:34 10:39 10:42 10:50 10:55

11:30 11:33 11:34 11:39 11:42 11:50 11:55

12:30 12:33 12:34 12:39 12:42 12:50 12:55

1:30 1:33 1:34 1:39 1:42 1:50 1:55

2:30 2:33 2:34 2:39 2:42 2:50 2:55

3:30 3:33 3:34 3:39 3:42 3:50 3:55

4:30 4:33 4:34 4:39 4:42 4:50 4:55

5:30 5:33 5:34 5:39 5:42 5:50 5:55

Attachment 6: Application

113 of 203



03
17

20
13

George Fox 
University

Naps
Thriftway

Chehalem
Senior
Center

Route 5
Regular Stops:

Naps Thriftway
George Fox University
The Oaks
Chehalem Senior Center
Main & Columbia
Woodview Village
Naps Thriftway

E 2nd St.

E 5th St.

E 9th St.

E 1st St.

Foothills Dr.

Crestview Dr.

S 
M

ai
n 

St
.

N
 M

er
id

ia
n 

St
.

S 
Bl

ai
ne

 S
t.

S 
Co

lle
ge

 S
t.

N
 C

ol
le

ge
 S

t.

Fred
Meyer

Portland 
Community 
College

George Fox 
University

Naps
Thriftway

Safeway

Providence
Newberg

Medical
CenterRoute 7

Newberg Weekdays
E Portland Rd / US Hwy 99w

E Hancock St.

E 2nd St.

E 1st St.
E 1st St.

E 2nd St.
E 2nd St.

E Hayes St.

E 3rd St.

St. Paul H
w

y

S 
M

ai
n 

St
.

Co
lle

ge
 S

t.

S 
Ev

er
es

t R
d.

A
rd

us
 D

r.
Co

rr
in

e 
D

r.

El
lio

tt
 R

d.

N
 B

ru
ts

ch
er

 S
t.

Pr
ov

id
en

ce
 D

r.

S 
Sp

rin
br

oo
k 

Rd
.

Regular Stops:
Naps Thriftway
Colonial Village
CPRD/FISH (Elliott Rd)
Fred Meyer

PCC
Providence Hospital
Safeway
Naps Thriftway

Yamhill County Transit Area 
535 NE 5th Street 
McMinnville, OR 97128  
phone: 503.474.4900 or 503.538.7433 
web: www.yctransitarea.org  
email: saunderst@co.yamhill.or.us 

Newberg Weekdays
Attachment 6: Application

114 of 203



Total Vehicle Summary

N College St & N Terrace Dr

7:00 AM   to   9:00 AM

5-Minute Interval Summary
7:00 AM   to   9:00 AM

Interval Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound Pedestrians
Start N College St N College St N Terrace Dr N Terrace Dr Interval Crosswalk
Time L T Bikes T R Bikes L R Bikes Bikes Total North South East West

7:00 AM 0 8 0 8 0 0 2 1 0 0 19 0 0 0 0
7:05 AM 0 23 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 33 0 0 0 0
7:10 AM 0 15 0 7 0 0 0 1 0 0 23 0 0 0 0
7:15 AM 0 16 0 6 0 0 1 2 0 0 25 0 0 0 0
7:20 AM 0 20 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 0 0
7:25 AM 0 20 0 10 0 0 0 2 0 0 32 0 0 0 0
7:30 AM 0 9 0 12 0 0 1 4 0 0 26 0 0 0 0
7:35 AM 0 21 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 25 0 0 0 0
7:40 AM 1 14 0 14 0 0 0 1 0 0 30 0 0 0 0
7:45 AM 0 9 0 8 0 0 0 1 0 0 18 0 0 0 0
7:50 AM 0 8 0 6 0 0 0 1 0 0 15 0 0 0 0
7:55 AM 0 12 0 12 0 0 1 3 0 0 28 0 0 0 0
8:00 AM 0 9 0 6 0 0 0 1 0 0 16 0 0 0 0
8:05 AM 0 8 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 0 0
8:10 AM 2 13 0 16 0 0 1 1 0 0 33 0 0 0 0
8:15 AM 1 15 0 9 0 0 0 4 0 0 29 0 0 0 0
8:20 AM 0 10 0 11 0 0 0 2 0 0 23 0 0 0 0
8:25 AM 1 9 0 6 0 0 1 0 0 0 17 0 0 0 0
8:30 AM 1 12 0 5 0 0 0 1 0 0 19 0 0 0 0
8:35 AM 1 9 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 0 0
8:40 AM 1 11 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 0 0 0 0
8:45 AM 2 9 0 11 0 0 0 1 0 0 23 0 0 0 0
8:50 AM 1 10 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 23 0 0 0 0
8:55 AM 0 7 0 10 0 0 0 4 0 0 21 0 0 0 0

Total 
Survey

11 297 0 223 0 0 7 30 0 0 568 0 0 0 0

Thursday, March 21, 2013

Clay Carney
(503) 833-2740

5

16

1

1070

0

0

0 0

175

176123
InOut

180107
OutIn

21In 

1Out

Out0

In0

0.
79

P
H

F
 

5.
1%

H
V

0.00PHF 
0.0%HV

0.75PHF 
0.0%HV

0.
84

P
H

F
 

3.
7%

H
V

Peak Hour Summary
7:00 AM   to   8:00 AM

15-Minute Interval Summary
7:00 AM   to   9:00 AM

Interval Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound Pedestrians
Start N College St N College St N Terrace Dr N Terrace Dr Interval Crosswalk
Time L T Bikes T R Bikes L R Bikes Bikes Total North South East West

7:00 AM 0 46 0 25 0 0 2 2 0 0 75 0 0 0 0
7:15 AM 0 56 0 26 0 0 1 4 0 0 87 0 0 0 0
7:30 AM 1 44 0 30 0 0 1 5 0 0 81 0 0 0 0
7:45 AM 0 29 0 26 0 0 1 5 0 0 61 0 0 0 0
8:00 AM 2 30 0 32 0 0 1 2 0 0 67 0 0 0 0
8:15 AM 2 34 0 26 0 0 1 6 0 0 69 0 0 0 0
8:30 AM 3 32 0 25 0 0 0 1 0 0 61 0 0 0 0
8:45 AM 3 26 0 33 0 0 0 5 0 0 67 0 0 0 0

Total 
Survey

11 297 0 223 0 0 7 30 0 0 568 0 0 0 0

Peak Hour Summary
7:00 AM   to   8:00 AM

Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound Pedestrians
N College St N College St N Terrace Dr N Terrace Dr Total Crosswalk

In Out Total Bikes In Out Total Bikes In Out Total Bikes In Out Total Bikes North South East West
Volume 176 123 299 0 107 180 287 0 21 1 22 0 0 0 0 0 304 0 0 0 0

%HV 5.1% 3.7% 0.0% 0.0% 4.3%
PHF 0.79 0.84 0.75 0.00 0.86

Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
N College St N College St N Terrace Dr N Terrace Dr Total

L T T R L R
Volume 1 175 107 0 5 16 304

%HV 0.0% 5.1% NA NA 3.7% 0.0% 0.0% NA 0.0% NA NA NA 4.3%
PHF 0.25 0.78 0.84 0.00 0.63 0.67 0.86

Rolling Hour Summary
7:00 AM   to   9:00 AM

Interval Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound Pedestrians
Start N College St N College St N Terrace Dr N Terrace Dr Interval Crosswalk
Time L T Bikes T R Bikes L R Bikes Bikes Total North South East West

7:00 AM 1 175 0 107 0 0 5 16 0 0 304 0 0 0 0
7:15 AM 3 159 0 114 0 0 4 16 0 0 296 0 0 0 0
7:30 AM 5 137 0 114 0 0 4 18 0 0 278 0 0 0 0
7:45 AM 7 125 0 109 0 0 3 14 0 0 258 0 0 0 0
8:00 AM 10 122 0 116 0 0 2 14 0 0 264 0 0 0 0

176

0.79 0.00

0

0.75

21

0.84

107
0.0%0.0%

By 
Movement

By 
Approach

Total TotalTotalTotal

3.7%5.1%

Attachment 6: Application

115 of 203



Heavy Vehicle Summary

N College St & N Terrace Dr

7:00 AM   to   9:00 AM

Heavy Vehicle   5-Minute Interval Summary
7:00 AM   to   9:00 AM

Interval Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
Start N College St N College St N Terrace Dr N Terrace Dr Interval
Time L T Total T R Total L R Total Total Total

7:00 AM 0 1 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 2
7:05 AM 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
7:10 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:20 AM 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
7:25 AM 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:35 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:40 AM 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
7:45 AM 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
7:50 AM 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
7:55 AM 0 1 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 2
8:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:05 AM 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
8:10 AM 0 3 3 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 4
8:15 AM 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
8:20 AM 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
8:25 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 AM 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:35 AM 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
8:40 AM 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:50 AM 0 1 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 2
8:55 AM 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Total 
Survey

0 17 17 10 0 10 0 0 0 0 27

Thursday, March 21, 2013

0

0

0

40

9

94
InOut

94
OutIn

0In 

0Out

Peak Hour Summary
7:00 AM   to   8:00 AM

Clay Carney
(503) 833-2740

Heavy Vehicle   15-Minute Interval Summary
7:00 AM   to   9:00 AM

Interval Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
Start N College St N College St N Terrace Dr N Terrace Dr Interval
Time L T Total T R Total L R Total Total Total

7:00 AM 0 3 3 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 4
7:15 AM 0 1 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 2
7:30 AM 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
7:45 AM 0 3 3 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 5
8:00 AM 0 5 5 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 6
8:15 AM 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 2
8:30 AM 0 2 2 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 3
8:45 AM 0 1 1 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 3

Total 
Survey

0 17 17 10 0 10 0 0 0 0 27

Heavy Vehicle   Peak Hour Summary
7:00 AM   to   8:00 AM

Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
N College St N College St N Terrace Dr N Terrace Dr

In Out Total In Out Total In Out Total In Out Total
Volume 9 4 13 4 9 13 0 0 0 0 0 0 13

PHF 0.56 0.50 0.00 0.00 0.65

Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
N College St N College St N Terrace Dr N Terrace Dr

L T Total T R Total L R Total Total
Volume 0 9 9 4 0 4 0 0 0 0 13

PHF 0.00 0.56 0.56 0.50 0.00 0.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.65

Heavy Vehicle   Rolling Hour Summary
7:00 AM   to   9:00 AM

Interval
Start Interval
Time L T Total T R Total L R Total Total Total

7:00 AM 0 9 9 4 0 4 0 0 0 0 13
7:15 AM 0 11 11 4 0 4 0 0 0 0 15
7:30 AM 0 10 10 5 0 5 0 0 0 0 15
7:45 AM 0 10 10 6 0 6 0 0 0 0 16
8:00 AM 0 8 8 6 0 6 0 0 0 0 14

By 
Movement

Total

By 
Approach

N College St N College St N Terrace Dr
Northbound Southbound Eastbound

Total

N Terrace Dr
Westbound

Attachment 6: Application

116 of 203



     Peak Hour Summary

7:00 AM   to   8:00 AM
Thursday, March 21, 2013

  

  

 107 180  

  

 0 107  

 � �  

          

               

 

0 1  0

 

 
       

5 �  

0 21  0

N Terrace Dr

0 0

N College St & N Terrace Dr

N
 C

o
lle

g
e 

S
t

0Bikes

0
Bikes

0Peds

P
ed

s
0

Clay Carney
(503) 833-2740

P
ed

s
0

0 21  0

16 �  

               

          

  �  

 1 175  

  

 123 176  

  

  

Count Period: 7:00 AM   to   9:00 AM

0

4.3%

107

304

Approach HV%PHF Volume

NB 0.79 5.1% 176

SB 0.84 3.7%

Intersection 0.86

EB 0.75 0.0%

0 N
 C

o
lle

g
e 

S
t

21

0WB 0.00 0.0%

0Bikes

0
Bikes

0Peds

P
ed

s
0

Clay Carney
(503) 833-2740

0

Bikes

0Peds

P
ed

s
0

0Bikes

Attachment 6: Application

117 of 203



Total Vehicle Summary

N College St & N Terrace Dr

4:00 PM   to   6:00 PM

5-Minute Interval Summary
4:00 PM   to   6:00 PM

Interval Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound Pedestrians
Start N College St N College St N Terrace Dr N Terrace Dr Interval Crosswalk
Time L T Bikes T R Bikes L R Bikes Bikes Total North South East West

4:00 PM 2 13 0 13 0 0 0 0 0 0 28 0 0 0 0
4:05 PM 2 8 0 6 2 0 1 1 0 0 20 0 0 0 0
4:10 PM 1 19 0 11 1 0 1 0 0 0 33 0 0 0 0
4:15 PM 1 12 0 20 0 0 0 2 0 0 35 0 0 0 0
4:20 PM 2 12 0 13 0 0 0 0 0 0 27 0 0 0 0
4:25 PM 1 10 0 16 1 0 0 1 0 0 29 0 0 0 0
4:30 PM 0 8 0 17 0 0 0 0 0 0 25 0 0 0 0
4:35 PM 0 9 0 22 0 0 1 4 0 0 36 0 0 0 0
4:40 PM 1 7 0 28 0 0 0 4 0 0 40 0 0 0 0
4:45 PM 1 16 0 17 0 0 0 0 0 0 34 0 0 0 0
4:50 PM 3 17 0 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 36 0 0 0 0
4:55 PM 2 14 0 19 0 0 0 2 0 0 37 0 0 0 0
5:00 PM 2 10 0 20 0 0 0 1 0 0 33 0 0 0 0
5:05 PM 2 18 0 23 1 0 0 0 0 0 44 0 0 0 0
5:10 PM 2 16 0 21 0 0 0 0 0 0 39 0 0 0 0
5:15 PM 1 9 0 26 1 0 0 0 0 0 37 0 0 0 0
5:20 PM 1 12 0 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 44 0 0 0 0
5:25 PM 1 9 0 20 0 0 0 1 0 0 31 0 0 0 0
5:30 PM 2 18 0 27 0 0 0 0 0 0 47 0 0 0 0
5:35 PM 0 17 0 15 0 0 0 1 0 0 33 0 0 0 0
5:40 PM 1 15 1 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 38 0 0 0 0
5:45 PM 2 8 0 28 1 0 1 2 0 0 42 0 0 0 0
5:50 PM 1 11 0 21 0 0 0 2 0 0 35 0 0 0 0
5:55 PM 3 9 0 13 0 0 0 3 0 0 28 1 0 0 0

Total 
Survey

34 297 1 465 7 0 4 24 0 0 831 1 0 0 0

Wednesday, March 20, 2013

Clay Carney
(503) 833-2740

1

7

19

2683

0

0

0 0

163

182275
InOut

164271
OutIn

8In 

22Out

Out0

In0

0.
86

P
H

F
 

1.
1%

H
V

0.00PHF 
0.0%HV

0.50PHF 
0.0%HV

0.
86

P
H

F
 

1.
8%

H
V

Peak Hour Summary
4:50 PM   to   5:50 PM

15-Minute Interval Summary
4:00 PM   to   6:00 PM

Interval Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound Pedestrians
Start N College St N College St N Terrace Dr N Terrace Dr Interval Crosswalk
Time L T Bikes T R Bikes L R Bikes Bikes Total North South East West

4:00 PM 5 40 0 30 3 0 2 1 0 0 81 0 0 0 0
4:15 PM 4 34 0 49 1 0 0 3 0 0 91 0 0 0 0
4:30 PM 1 24 0 67 0 0 1 8 0 0 101 0 0 0 0
4:45 PM 6 47 0 52 0 0 0 2 0 0 107 0 0 0 0
5:00 PM 6 44 0 64 1 0 0 1 0 0 116 0 0 0 0
5:15 PM 3 30 0 77 1 0 0 1 0 0 112 0 0 0 0
5:30 PM 3 50 1 64 0 0 0 1 0 0 118 0 0 0 0
5:45 PM 6 28 0 62 1 0 1 7 0 0 105 1 0 0 0

Total 
Survey

34 297 1 465 7 0 4 24 0 0 831 1 0 0 0

Peak Hour Summary
4:50 PM   to   5:50 PM

Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound Pedestrians
N College St N College St N Terrace Dr N Terrace Dr Total Crosswalk

In Out Total Bikes In Out Total Bikes In Out Total Bikes In Out Total Bikes North South East West
Volume 182 275 457 1 271 164 435 0 8 22 30 0 0 0 0 0 461 0 0 0 0

%HV 1.1% 1.8% 0.0% 0.0% 1.5%
PHF 0.86 0.86 0.50 0.00 0.94

Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
N College St N College St N Terrace Dr N Terrace Dr Total

L T T R L R
Volume 19 163 268 3 1 7 461

%HV 0.0% 1.2% NA NA 1.9% 0.0% 0.0% NA 0.0% NA NA NA 1.5%
PHF 0.68 0.82 0.86 0.38 0.25 0.58 0.94

Rolling Hour Summary
4:00 PM   to   6:00 PM

Interval Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound Pedestrians
Start N College St N College St N Terrace Dr N Terrace Dr Interval Crosswalk
Time L T Bikes T R Bikes L R Bikes Bikes Total North South East West

4:00 PM 16 145 0 198 4 0 3 14 0 0 380 0 0 0 0
4:15 PM 17 149 0 232 2 0 1 14 0 0 415 0 0 0 0
4:30 PM 16 145 0 260 2 0 1 12 0 0 436 0 0 0 0
4:45 PM 18 171 1 257 2 0 0 5 0 0 453 0 0 0 0
5:00 PM 18 152 1 267 3 0 1 10 0 0 451 1 0 0 0

182

0.86 0.00

0

0.50

8

0.86

271
0.0%0.0%

By 
Movement

By 
Approach

Total TotalTotalTotal

1.8%1.1%

Attachment 6: Application

118 of 203



Heavy Vehicle Summary

N College St & N Terrace Dr

4:00 PM   to   6:00 PM

Heavy Vehicle   5-Minute Interval Summary
4:00 PM   to   6:00 PM

Interval Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
Start N College St N College St N Terrace Dr N Terrace Dr Interval
Time L T Total T R Total L R Total Total Total

4:00 PM 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
4:05 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:10 PM 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
4:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:20 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:25 PM 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
4:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:35 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:40 PM 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 2
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:50 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:55 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:00 PM 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
5:05 PM 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
5:10 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:15 PM 0 1 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 2
5:20 PM 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 2
5:25 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:30 PM 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
5:35 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:40 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:50 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:55 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 
Survey

0 4 4 9 0 9 0 0 0 0 13

Wednesday, March 20, 2013

0

0

0

50

2

25
InOut

25
OutIn

0In 

0Out

Peak Hour Summary
4:50 PM   to   5:50 PM

Clay Carney
(503) 833-2740

Heavy Vehicle   15-Minute Interval Summary
4:00 PM   to   6:00 PM

Interval Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
Start N College St N College St N Terrace Dr N Terrace Dr Interval
Time L T Total T R Total L R Total Total Total

4:00 PM 0 2 2 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 3
4:15 PM 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
4:30 PM 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 2
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:00 PM 0 1 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 2
5:15 PM 0 1 1 3 0 3 0 0 0 0 4
5:30 PM 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 
Survey

0 4 4 9 0 9 0 0 0 0 13

Heavy Vehicle   Peak Hour Summary
4:50 PM   to   5:50 PM

Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
N College St N College St N Terrace Dr N Terrace Dr

In Out Total In Out Total In Out Total In Out Total
Volume 2 5 7 5 2 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 7

PHF 0.50 0.42 0.00 0.00 0.44

Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
N College St N College St N Terrace Dr N Terrace Dr

L T Total T R Total L R Total Total
Volume 0 2 2 5 0 5 0 0 0 0 7

PHF 0.00 0.50 0.50 0.42 0.00 0.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.44

Heavy Vehicle   Rolling Hour Summary
4:00 PM   to   6:00 PM

Interval
Start Interval
Time L T Total T R Total L R Total Total Total

4:00 PM 0 2 2 4 0 4 0 0 0 0 6
4:15 PM 0 1 1 4 0 4 0 0 0 0 5
4:30 PM 0 2 2 6 0 6 0 0 0 0 8
4:45 PM 0 2 2 5 0 5 0 0 0 0 7
5:00 PM 0 2 2 5 0 5 0 0 0 0 7

By 
Movement

Total

By 
Approach

N College St N College St N Terrace Dr
Northbound Southbound Eastbound

Total

N Terrace Dr
Westbound

Attachment 6: Application

119 of 203



     Peak Hour Summary

4:50 PM   to   5:50 PM
Wednesday, March 20, 2013

  

  

 271 164  

  

 3 268  

 � �  

          

               

 

0 22  0

 

 
       

1 �  

0 8  0

N Terrace Dr

0 0

N College St & N Terrace Dr

N
 C

o
lle

g
e 

S
t

0Bikes

0
Bikes

0Peds

P
ed

s
0

Clay Carney
(503) 833-2740

P
ed

s
0

0 8  0

7 �  

               

          

  �  

 19 163  

  

 275 182  

  

  

Count Period: 4:00 PM   to   6:00 PM

0

1.5%

271

461

Approach HV%PHF Volume

NB 0.86 1.1% 182

SB 0.86 1.8%

Intersection 0.94

EB 0.50 0.0%

0 N
 C

o
lle

g
e 

S
t

8

0WB 0.00 0.0%

0Bikes

0
Bikes

0Peds

P
ed

s
0

Clay Carney
(503) 833-2740

1

Bikes

0Peds

P
ed

s
0

0Bikes

Attachment 6: Application

120 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

121 of 203



Land Use: Single-Family Detached Housing

Land Use Code: 210

Variable: Dwelling Units

Variable Value: 44

Trip Rate: 0.75 Trip Rate: 1.00

Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total

Directional Directional

Distribution Distribution

Trip Ends 8 25 33 Trip Ends 28 16 44

Trip Rate: 9.52 Trip Rate: 9.91

Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total

Directional Directional

Distribution Distribution

Trip Ends 209 209 418 Trip Ends 218 218 436

Source: TRIP GENERATION, Ninth Edition

75% 63% 37%

50% 50%50%50%

TRIP GENERATION CALCULATIONS

AM PEAK HOUR PM PEAK HOUR

WEEKDAY SATURDAY

25%

Attachment 6: Application

122 of 203



HCM Unsignalized Intersection Capacity Analysis Existing Conditions - AM Peak Hour

1: N Terrace Dr & N College St 4/2/2013

Terra Subdivision Synchro 6 Light Report

WRF - Lancaster Engineering Page 1

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR

Lane Configurations

Sign Control Stop Free Free

Grade 0% 0% 0%

Volume (veh/h) 5 17 1 187 114 1

Peak Hour Factor 0.86 0.86 0.86 0.86 0.86 0.86

Hourly flow rate (vph) 6 20 1 217 133 1

Pedestrians

Lane Width (ft)

Walking Speed (ft/s)

Percent Blockage

Right turn flare (veh)

Median type TWLTL

Median storage veh) 0

Upstream signal (ft)

pX, platoon unblocked

vC, conflicting volume 353 133 134

vC1, stage 1 conf vol 133

vC2, stage 2 conf vol 220

vCu, unblocked vol 353 133 134

tC, single (s) 6.4 6.2 4.1

tC, 2 stage (s) 5.4

tF (s) 3.5 3.3 2.2

p0 queue free % 99 98 100

cM capacity (veh/h) 509 919 1433

Direction, Lane # EB 1 NB 1 NB 2 SB 1

Volume Total 26 1 217 134

Volume Left 6 1 0 0

Volume Right 20 0 0 1

cSH 776 1433 1700 1700

Volume to Capacity 0.03 0.00 0.13 0.08

Queue Length 95th (ft) 3 0 0 0

Control Delay (s) 9.8 7.5 0.0 0.0

Lane LOS A A

Approach Delay (s) 9.8 0.0 0.0

Approach LOS A

Intersection Summary

Average Delay 0.7

Intersection Capacity Utilization 19.8% ICU Level of Service A

Analysis Period (min) 15

Attachment 6: Application

123 of 203



HCM Unsignalized Intersection Capacity Analysis Existing Conditions - PM Peak Hour

1: N Terrace Dr & N College St 4/2/2013

Terra Subdivision Synchro 6 Light Report

WRF - Lancaster Engineering Page 1

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR

Lane Configurations

Sign Control Stop Free Free

Grade 0% 0% 0%

Volume (veh/h) 1 7 20 174 286 3

Peak Hour Factor 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94

Hourly flow rate (vph) 1 7 21 185 304 3

Pedestrians

Lane Width (ft)

Walking Speed (ft/s)

Percent Blockage

Right turn flare (veh)

Median type TWLTL

Median storage veh) 0

Upstream signal (ft)

pX, platoon unblocked

vC, conflicting volume 534 306 307

vC1, stage 1 conf vol 306

vC2, stage 2 conf vol 228

vCu, unblocked vol 534 306 307

tC, single (s) 6.4 6.2 4.1

tC, 2 stage (s) 5.4

tF (s) 3.5 3.3 2.2

p0 queue free % 100 99 98

cM capacity (veh/h) 432 736 1259

Direction, Lane # EB 1 NB 1 NB 2 SB 1

Volume Total 9 21 185 307

Volume Left 1 21 0 0

Volume Right 7 0 0 3

cSH 677 1259 1700 1700

Volume to Capacity 0.01 0.02 0.11 0.18

Queue Length 95th (ft) 1 1 0 0

Control Delay (s) 10.4 7.9 0.0 0.0

Lane LOS B A

Approach Delay (s) 10.4 0.8 0.0

Approach LOS B

Intersection Summary

Average Delay 0.5

Intersection Capacity Utilization 26.6% ICU Level of Service A

Analysis Period (min) 15

Attachment 6: Application

124 of 203



HCM Unsignalized Intersection Capacity Analysis 2015 Background Conditions - AM Peak

1: N Terrace Dr & N College St 4/3/2013

Terra Subdivision Synchro 6 Light Report

WRF - Lancaster Engineering Page 1

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR

Lane Configurations

Sign Control Stop Free Free

Grade 0% 0% 0%

Volume (veh/h) 5 18 1 196 119 1

Peak Hour Factor 0.86 0.86 0.86 0.86 0.86 0.86

Hourly flow rate (vph) 6 21 1 228 138 1

Pedestrians

Lane Width (ft)

Walking Speed (ft/s)

Percent Blockage

Right turn flare (veh)

Median type TWLTL

Median storage veh) 0

Upstream signal (ft)

pX, platoon unblocked

vC, conflicting volume 369 139 140

vC1, stage 1 conf vol 139

vC2, stage 2 conf vol 230

vCu, unblocked vol 369 139 140

tC, single (s) 6.4 6.2 4.1

tC, 2 stage (s) 5.4

tF (s) 3.5 3.3 2.2

p0 queue free % 99 98 100

cM capacity (veh/h) 502 912 1426

Direction, Lane # EB 1 NB 1 NB 2 SB 1

Volume Total 27 1 228 140

Volume Left 6 1 0 0

Volume Right 21 0 0 1

cSH 774 1426 1700 1700

Volume to Capacity 0.03 0.00 0.13 0.08

Queue Length 95th (ft) 3 0 0 0

Control Delay (s) 9.8 7.5 0.0 0.0

Lane LOS A A

Approach Delay (s) 9.8 0.0 0.0

Approach LOS A

Intersection Summary

Average Delay 0.7

Intersection Capacity Utilization 20.3% ICU Level of Service A

Analysis Period (min) 15

Attachment 6: Application

125 of 203



HCM Unsignalized Intersection Capacity Analysis 2015 Background Conditions - PM Peak

1: N Terrace Dr & N College St 4/3/2013

Terra Subdivision Synchro 6 Light Report

Lancaster Engineering Page 1

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR

Lane Configurations

Sign Control Stop Free Free

Grade 0% 0% 0%

Volume (veh/h) 1 7 21 182 299 3

Peak Hour Factor 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94

Hourly flow rate (vph) 1 7 22 194 318 3

Pedestrians

Lane Width (ft)

Walking Speed (ft/s)

Percent Blockage

Right turn flare (veh)

Median type TWLTL

Median storage veh) 0

Upstream signal (ft)

pX, platoon unblocked

vC, conflicting volume 558 320 321

vC1, stage 1 conf vol 320

vC2, stage 2 conf vol 238

vCu, unblocked vol 558 320 321

tC, single (s) 6.4 6.2 4.1

tC, 2 stage (s) 5.4

tF (s) 3.5 3.3 2.2

p0 queue free % 100 99 98

cM capacity (veh/h) 423 723 1244

Direction, Lane # EB 1 NB 1 NB 2 SB 1

Volume Total 9 22 194 321

Volume Left 1 22 0 0

Volume Right 7 0 0 3

cSH 665 1244 1700 1700

Volume to Capacity 0.01 0.02 0.11 0.19

Queue Length 95th (ft) 1 1 0 0

Control Delay (s) 10.5 7.9 0.0 0.0

Lane LOS B A

Approach Delay (s) 10.5 0.8 0.0

Approach LOS B

Intersection Summary

Average Delay 0.5

Intersection Capacity Utilization 27.5% ICU Level of Service A

Analysis Period (min) 15

Attachment 6: Application

126 of 203



HCM Unsignalized Intersection Capacity Analysis 2015 Background plus Site - AM Peak

1: N Terrace Dr & N College St 4/3/2013

Terra Subdivision Synchro 6 Light Report

WRF - Lancaster Engineering Page 1

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR

Lane Configurations

Sign Control Stop Free Free

Grade 0% 0% 0%

Volume (veh/h) 9 32 6 196 119 2

Peak Hour Factor 0.86 0.86 0.86 0.86 0.86 0.86

Hourly flow rate (vph) 10 37 7 228 138 2

Pedestrians

Lane Width (ft)

Walking Speed (ft/s)

Percent Blockage

Right turn flare (veh)

Median type TWLTL

Median storage veh) 0

Upstream signal (ft)

pX, platoon unblocked

vC, conflicting volume 381 140 141

vC1, stage 1 conf vol 140

vC2, stage 2 conf vol 242

vCu, unblocked vol 381 140 141

tC, single (s) 6.4 6.2 4.1

tC, 2 stage (s) 5.4

tF (s) 3.5 3.3 2.2

p0 queue free % 98 96 100

cM capacity (veh/h) 494 911 1424

Direction, Lane # EB 1 NB 1 NB 2 SB 1

Volume Total 48 7 228 141

Volume Left 10 7 0 0

Volume Right 37 0 0 2

cSH 769 1424 1700 1700

Volume to Capacity 0.06 0.00 0.13 0.08

Queue Length 95th (ft) 5 0 0 0

Control Delay (s) 10.0 7.5 0.0 0.0

Lane LOS A A

Approach Delay (s) 10.0 0.2 0.0

Approach LOS A

Intersection Summary

Average Delay 1.2

Intersection Capacity Utilization 20.3% ICU Level of Service A

Analysis Period (min) 15

Attachment 6: Application

127 of 203



HCM Unsignalized Intersection Capacity Analysis 2015 Background plus Site - PM Peak

1: N Terrace Dr & N College St 4/3/2013

Terra Subdivision Synchro 6 Light Report

Lancaster Engineering - WRF Page 1

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR

Lane Configurations

Sign Control Stop Free Free

Grade 0% 0% 0%

Volume (veh/h) 3 16 37 182 299 7

Peak Hour Factor 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94

Hourly flow rate (vph) 3 17 39 194 318 7

Pedestrians

Lane Width (ft)

Walking Speed (ft/s)

Percent Blockage

Right turn flare (veh)

Median type TWLTL

Median storage veh) 0

Upstream signal (ft)

pX, platoon unblocked

vC, conflicting volume 594 322 326

vC1, stage 1 conf vol 322

vC2, stage 2 conf vol 272

vCu, unblocked vol 594 322 326

tC, single (s) 6.4 6.2 4.1

tC, 2 stage (s) 5.4

tF (s) 3.5 3.3 2.2

p0 queue free % 99 98 97

cM capacity (veh/h) 407 721 1240

Direction, Lane # EB 1 NB 1 NB 2 SB 1

Volume Total 20 39 194 326

Volume Left 3 39 0 0

Volume Right 17 0 0 7

cSH 643 1240 1700 1700

Volume to Capacity 0.03 0.03 0.11 0.19

Queue Length 95th (ft) 2 2 0 0

Control Delay (s) 10.8 8.0 0.0 0.0

Lane LOS B A

Approach Delay (s) 10.8 1.4 0.0

Approach LOS B

Intersection Summary

Average Delay 0.9

Intersection Capacity Utilization 32.8% ICU Level of Service A

Analysis Period (min) 15

Attachment 6: Application

128 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

129 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

130 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

131 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

132 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

133 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

134 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

135 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

136 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

137 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

138 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

139 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

140 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

141 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

142 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

143 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

144 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

145 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

146 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

147 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

148 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

149 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

150 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

151 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

152 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

153 of 203



Attachment 6: Application

154 of 203



 
CIVIL ENGINEERS & PLANNERS 

 

 
8285 SW Nimbus Avenue, Suite 180 Beaverton, Oregon 97008    TEL: 503.515.5528       Fax: 503.639.9592 

 

Technical Memorandum 

 

 

Date:  July 25, 2013 

 

To:  City of Newberg Review Staff 

 

From:  Eric Evans, PE , Emerio Design LLC 

 

RE:  Terra 44-Lot Subdivision Available Fire Flow  

 

 

The memo is written to document the available fire flow at the intersection of Terrace Drive 

and Camella Road in the City of Newberg.  Fire flow testing was provided by Jack Gardner with 

Wyatt Fire Protection in June of this year.  A copy of these results is attached. 

Per NFPA 291: Qf = Qr((Ps-Fire flow Pressure)/(Ps-Pr))0.54 

  Where: 

   Ps = Pressure Static = 57 PSI  (Tested) 

   Pr = Pressure Residual = 48 PSI (Tested) 

   Qr = Residual Flow = 1160 GPM (Tested) 

   Fire Flow Pressure = 20 PSI  (By Code) 

  Calculated: 

    Qf = 2490 GPM   (Calculated) 

Per appendix B-Table 105.1 of the 2010 Oregon Fire Code this fire flow meets the 

requirements for type V-B residential construction up to a building size of 7700 SF and such 

sufficient to meet the requirements of this proposed development. It is my professional 

opinion that the subject site has adequate domestic and fire flow capacity. 

Should you have further questions or comments on this matter, please to not hesitate to call 

me at 503-853-1910. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
 

 

Eric Evans, PE 

Engineering Director 

 

Attachment 6: Application

155 of 203



 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.CUP\2013\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery 800 N. Brutscher\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery staff report.doc 

Planning and Building Department 
P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132 
503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 
WINERY AT 800 N. BRUTSCHER STREET 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT/DESIGN REVIEW  
  

HEARING DATE: July 11, 2013 
 

FILE NO:  CUP-13-002/DR1-13-008 
 

REQUEST: Conditional use permit/design review to operate a winery in an existing 
industrial building 

 

LOCATION: 800 N. Brutscher Street (former Suntron building) 
 

TAX LOT: 3216-2009 
 

APPLICANT: Argyle Winery 
 

OWNER: Stag II Newberg LLC 
 

ZONE: M-1 (Limited Industrial) 
 

PLAN DISTRICT: IND (Industrial) 
 

OVERLAYS: Airport Inner Horizontal Surface 
  
ATTACHMENTS:
Order 2013-12 with 
 Exhibit “A”:  Findings 
 Exhibit “B”:  Conditions 

1. Aerial Photos 
2. Site Plan 
3. Application 
4. Public 

Comments/Correspondence 
Received (none) 

 

156 of 203



 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.CUP\2013\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery 800 N. Brutscher\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery staff report.doc 

A. DESCRIPTION OF APPLICATION:   The applicant, Argyle Winery, has requested a 
conditional use permit to operate a winery in an existing industrial building at 800 N. 
Brutscher Street. The site is in the M-1 (Limited Industrial) zone, and a winery is a conditional 
use in this zone. The applicant therefore has applied for a conditional use permit/design 
review to change the use of the site. The site was formerly owned by Suntron, and used to 
manufacture electronic components. No new external additions or site changes are proposed. 
The applicant plans to make extensive changes to the internal plumbing and mechanical 
systems to accommodate a winery (adding floor drains, for example). The existing building is 
one story tall and includes office space, manufacturing space, and storage space. There are 
over 200 parking spaces on the western part of the site, and large areas landscaped with trees 
and lawns around the building. 

B. SITE INFORMATION: 

1. Location:  800 N. Brutscher Street 

2. Size: Approximately 12 acres 

3. Topography: Generally level, with a slight slope to the east 

4. Current Land Uses: Vacant industrial building (formerly Suntron, a manufacturer of 
electrical components) 

5. Natural Features: Mature street trees along Brutscher Street. Mature trees north and 
south of the parking areas.  

6. Adjacent Land Uses: 

a. North: Veterinary clinic, Ford dealership, and Providence hospital 

b. East: Vacant lot (potential medical office), and duplex residential development 
(Friendsview) 

c. South: Astor House assisted living facility 

d. West: Across Brutscher Street - residential townhouses, and commercial retail 
building 

7. Access and Transportation: The site has two existing driveways on Brutscher Street, a 
major collector street which is developed to its full width with paving, curbs, street 
trees, and sidewalks. No changes to the driveways or street improvements are 
proposed. 

8. Utilities: 

a. Sanitary Sewer:  There is a 10" public line in Brutscher Street. No change is 
proposed to the existing sewer connection. 

b. Water: There is a 12" public line in Brutscher Street, and an 8" public line 
running along the north edge of the property. No change is proposed to the 

157 of 203



 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.CUP\2013\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery 800 N. Brutscher\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery staff report.doc 

existing water system. 

c. Storm: The site drains to a swale and private storm line on the eastern edge of 
the site. No changes are proposed to the existing stormwater system 

C. PROCESS:  The conditional use permit/design review request is a Type III application and 
follows the procedures in Newberg Development Code 15.100.050.  The Planning 
Commission will hold a quasi-judicial hearing on the application.  The Commission is to 
make a decision on the application based on the criteria listed in the attached findings.  The 
Planning Commission’s decision is final unless appealed.  Important dates related to this 
application are as follows: 

1. 7/1/13 The planning director deemed the application complete. 
2. 6/20/13 The applicant mailed notice to the property owners within 500 

feet of the site. 
3. 6/26/13 The applicant posted notice on the site. 
4. 6/26/13 The Newberg Graphic published notice of the Planning 

Commission hearing. 
5. 7/11/13 The Planning Commission will hold a quasi-judicial hearing to 

consider the application. 
 

D. AGENCY COMMENTS:  The application was routed to several public agencies & city 
departments for review and comment.  As of the writing of this report, the city received the 
following agency comments:   
 

1. City of Newberg: 
 

a. Police Dept: Reviewed, no conflict 
 

b. Fire Dept: Reviewed, no conflict 
 

c. Finance Dept.: Reviewed, no conflict  
 

d. Public Works Maintenance Superintendent: Reviewed, no conflict 
 

e. Public Works - Operations (Wastewater treatment - Alan Lee): I reviewed the 
conditional use permit application by Argyle Winery and have no comments and 
no objection to granting the conditional use permit. My signed review is in the 
interoffice mail. 
We have determined that the winery will not need an industrial discharge permit. 
PW Operations will work with Building/Planning and Argyle Winery during the 
building permit process to ensure that the plumbing changes do not result in 
potential violations of the municipal code regarding prohibited discharges to the 
sanitary sewer system, that proper backflow prevention devices are installed to 
protect the potable water system, and that the proposed mode of operation will 
not result in illicit discharges to the storm sewer system. Once the winery is in 
operation, our involvement should be minimal.  
 

f. Public Works - Engineering: I looked at the frontage improvements for the project 
and everything looks ok.  The applicant did not provide any information 

158 of 203



 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.CUP\2013\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery 800 N. Brutscher\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery staff report.doc 

regarding their sanitary sewer discharge rate, which may affect the downstream 
conveyance system.  The downstream wastewater system consists of a 10-inch line 
flowing south in Brutscher, a 12-inch gravity line in Fernwood flowing east to the 
Fernwood pump station, and a 12” pressure mainline from the Fernwood pump 
station that flows west to Springbrook Road.  Gravity flow resumes in 
Springbrook Road in a 15-inch mainline that flows south.  Without having any 
sewer discharge information, please add the following condition:  

 Applicant to submit sanitary sewer calculations prepared by a 
registered Civil Engineer that evaluate the downstream impact of the 
increased discharge from the site to and including the potential impacts to 
the Fernwood Road sanitary sewer pump station. 

Also, the use may potentially increase the water and/or sewer system development 
charge from what the former user Suntron previously paid.   

 
E. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  As of the writing of this report, the city has not received any 

written public comments.   

F. ANALYSIS:  A conditional use permit should consider whether there are any potential 
negative impacts on the surrounding area. 

1. Traffic: The winery use will generate much less traffic than a typical manufacturing 
facility. A manufacturer like Suntron needed a large parking lot and loading area 
because they had many employees and frequent deliveries and shipments of materials 
and finished products. The winery is expected to have approximately 20 employees, 
and will only have frequent deliveries of grapes during the harvest season (typically 4-
6 weeks). The winery will ship from the site, but less frequently than a typical 
manufacturing facility. The winery should have a low impact on traffic most of the 
year. 

2. Manufacturing process impacts: Due to its seasonal nature, the winery is expected to 
generate significantly less noise and external impacts than a manufacturing facility that 
is in daily production. The site will probably only appear busy during the harvest 
season (typically 4-6 weeks.) The applicant does not expect the winemaking process to 
generate significant odors, and will control this by not composting any material on the 
site and by removing grape residue on a regular basis. 

G. PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  The preliminary staff recommendation 
is made in the absence of public hearing testimony, and may be modified subsequent to the 
close of the public hearing.  At this writing, staff recommends the following motion: 

 Move to adopt Planning Commission Order 2013-12, which approves the requested 
conditional use permit with the attached conditions. 

159 of 203



 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.CUP\2013\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery 800 N. Brutscher\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery staff report.doc 

 PLANNING COMMISSION ORDER 2013-12 
 

 AN ORDER APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT/DESIGN REVIEW CUP-

13-002/DR1-13-008 FOR A WINERY AT 800 N. BRUTSCHER STREET, YAMHILL 

COUNTY TAX LOT 3216-2009  

RECITALS 

1. Argyle Winery, Inc. submitted an application for a conditional use permit/design review for a 
winery at 800 N. Brutscher Street, Yamhill County Tax Lot 3216-2009. 

2. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission held a hearing on July 11, 2013 to 
consider the application.  The Commission considered testimony, and deliberated. 

3. The Newberg Planning Commission finds that the application meets the applicable criteria as 
shown in the findings shown in Exhibit “A”. 

The Newberg Planning Commission orders as follows: 

1. Conditional Use Permit/Design Review Application CUP-13-002/DR1-13-008 is hereby 
approved, subject to the conditions contained in Exhibit “B”.  Exhibit "B" is hereby adopted 
and by this reference incorporated. 

2. The findings shown in Exhibit “A” are hereby adopted.  Exhibit "A" is hereby adopted and by 
this reference incorporated. 

3. This order shall be effective July 26, 2013 unless appealed prior to that date. 

4. This order shall expire one year after the effective date above if the applicant does not obtain a 
building permit pursuant to this application by that time, unless an extension is granted per 
Newberg Development Code 15.225.100. 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 11th day of July, 2013. 

        ATTEST: 

 
Planning Commission Chair     Planning Commission Secretary 

List of Exhibits: 
 Exhibit “A”: Findings  
 Exhibit “B”: Conditions 
  

160 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.CUP\2013\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery 800 N. Brutscher\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery staff report.doc 

Exhibit “A” to Planning Commission Order 2013-12 
Findings –File CUP-13-002/DR1-13-008 

Winery at 800 N. Brutscher Street 

A. Design Review Criteria That Apply - Newberg Development Code 15.220.050 

Type I. The following criteria are required to be met in order to approve a Type I design 
review request: 

1. Parking. Parking areas shall meet the requirements of NMC 15.440.010. 

Finding:  The applicant is not planning on adding parking. The code requires 1 space per 500 square 
feet of floor area for industrial uses. The building is 65,327 square feet, and is therefore required to 
have at least 131 spaces. The site has over 200 parking spaces, and significantly exceeds the 
minimum requirement for industrial uses. The winery is expected to have approximately 20 
employees, which is significantly less than a typical manufacturing use would have; the site has quite 
a bit more parking than the use needs or the code requires. The site has a gravel area east of the 
building that will be used for an unloading zone; this gravel area is not required to be paved, as it is 
not part of the required parking area.  

One of the ADA parking place signs has fallen and needs to be reinstalled. Some of the ADA parking 
signs are non-standard, and should be replaced with standard signs. 

It appears that the bike parking rack on the site was removed. The development code requires 
industrial uses to have one bike parking stall per 10,000 square feet of floor area, so the applicant 
should install bike parking for at least 7 bikes. This should be located within 50 feet of a building 
entrance.  

2. Setbacks and General Requirements. The proposal shall comply with NMC 
15.415.010 through 15.415.060 dealing with height restrictions and public access; 
and NMC 15.405.010 through 15.405.040 and NMC 15.410.010 through 15.410.070 
dealing with setbacks, coverage, vision clearance, and yard requirements. 

Finding: The applicant is not planning any additions to the building, so the setbacks, height, and 
other site characteristics will not change. The M-1 zone requires a 20 foot front setback, and a 10 
foot interior yard setback next to residential zones. The existing site meets the setback, vision 
clearance and yard requirements. 

3. Landscaping Requirements. The proposal shall comply with NMC 15.420.010 
dealing with landscape requirements and landscape screening. 

Finding: The site has extensive existing landscaping. The front yard is landscaped and has mature 
street trees. There are mature trees north and south of the parking and loading areas for buffering, and 
extensive lawn areas on the site. The site exceeds the minimum 15% landscaping requirement. There 
are existing parking lot trees, but one appears to have died. When this parking lot tree is replaced 
then the site will meet the landscaping code requirements.  

161 of 203

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15440.html#15.440.010
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15415.html#15.415.010
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15415.html#15.415.060
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html#15.405.010
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html#15.405.040
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15410.html#15.410.010
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15410.html#15.410.070
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=303
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15420.html#15.420.010
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170


 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.CUP\2013\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery 800 N. Brutscher\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery staff report.doc 

4. Signs. Signs shall comply with NMC 15.435.010 et seq. dealing with signs. 

Finding: The applicant is not applying for new signs at this time, but will apply for a sign permit in 
the future when they have completed their sign designs.  

5. Zoning District Compliance. The proposed use shall be listed as a permitted or 
conditionally permitted use in the zoning district in which it is located as found in 
NMC 15.304.010 through 15.328.040. 
 
Chapter 15.320   M-1 LIMITED INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 

 
15.320.030 Buildings and uses permitted conditionally.  

 
In addition to the buildings and uses permitted conditionally listed in NMC 
15.225.070, the planning commission may grant a conditional use permit for any of 
the following buildings and uses in accordance with a Type III procedure: 
 
A. Contractor’s equipment or storage. 
B. Dwellings, in conjunction with a permitted use. 
C. Manufacturing, compounding, bottling, processing, packaging, or treatment of 
food and beverage products. 
D. Recreational vehicle parks. 
E. Telecommunications facilities, including radio towers and transmitters which are 
either freestanding or which are incorporated into an existing structure or an 
existing utility pole and will extend above the existing structure more than 18 feet. 
F. Any other buildings or uses determined to be similar to those listed in this section. 
Such other uses shall not have any different or more detrimental effect upon the 
adjoining neighborhood area than the buildings and uses specifically listed in this 
section. [Ord. 2536, 11-6-00; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.387.] 
 

Finding: The M-1 zone allows a range of light manufacturing uses. A winery is a conditional use in 
the M-1 industrial zone, so the applicant is applying for a conditional use permit (see findings 
below). If the conditional use permit is approved then the use complies with the M-1 zoning district. 

 

B. Conditional Use Permit Criteria That Apply - Newberg Development Code 15.225.060. 

The Planning Commission may grant or deny the application, or may require such changes or impose 
such reasonable conditions as are in their judgment necessary to ensure conformity to the conditional 
use permit criteria.  A conditional use permit may only be granted if the proposal conforms to the 
following: 

A. The location, size, design and operating characteristics of the proposed 
development are such that it can be made reasonably compatible with and have 

162 of 203

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=257
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=257
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15435.html#15.435.010
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=257
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15304.html#15.304.010
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15328.html#15.328.040
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15225.html#15.225.070
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=229
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=81
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=101
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=242
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=281
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=238
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2536.pdf
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2451.pdf


 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.CUP\2013\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery 800 N. Brutscher\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery staff report.doc 

minimal impact on the livability or appropriate development of abutting properties 
and the surrounding neighborhood, with consideration to be given to harmony in 
scale, bulk, coverage and density; to the availability of public facilities and utilities; 
to the generation of traffic and the capacity of surrounding streets, and to any other 
relevant impact of the development. 

Finding:  The site is zoned M-1 (limited industrial), which allows a range of light manufacturing 
uses. It does not allow heavy industry. The former Suntron site was developed in the late 1990s. The 
applicant is not proposing to expand the existing building, and the site has extensive landscaping 
buffers around the edges of the site. The site has residential duplexes to the southeast, an assisted 
living facility to the south, and townhouses to the southwest. These residential uses were all 
developed after the Suntron site was in operation, which is an indication that the residential 
developers felt the light manufacturing use was compatible with residential. The applicant’s proposal 
for a winery is for an especially light type of manufacturing because it is seasonal. The site will 
operate like an industrial facility during the harvest season (typically 4-6 weeks), and then will be 
more like a warehouse or storage use during the rest of the year. During the harvest season there will 
be delivery traffic to the site, and the grape processing will produce wine grape skins, seeds and 
stalks as waste. The waste will not be composted on the site, and will be removed about every two 
days. This should control the major potential source of odors. During the non-harvest season the 
amount of delivery traffic will be lighter and the number of employees will be relatively small 
(approximately 20). There will be regular shipments of wine from the site. On the whole, the amount 
of traffic and other external impacts generated by the winery use are expected to be significantly 
lighter than from the prior Suntron use or from typical light manufacturing uses.  

The city’s Public Works - Operations division does not expect any significant wastewater quality 
issues from the winery, and will not require an industrial wastewater discharge permit for the use. 
They will review the plumbing permit when it is submitted to verify that the plumbing system will 
meet the city wastewater discharge code.  

The city’s Public Works - Engineering division has noted that they do not know what the volume of 
wastewater will be from the site, and they need to verify that the downstream system will have 
adequate capacity. They have therefore conditioned the applicant to submit sanitary sewer 
calculations prepared by a registered Civil Engineer that evaluate the downstream impact of the 
increased discharge from the site to and including the potential impacts to the Fernwood Road 
sanitary sewer pump station. 

The operating characteristics, size and design of the site are such that the proposed winery use will be 
compatible with the surrounding development and will have minimal impact on the livability of the 
surrounding area.  

There is a public water line on the northern part of the property, and it has a utility easement and 
pedestrian/bicycle path easement over it. The city requests that the applicant build a path (either hard 
or soft-surfaced) on this easement to enable a future path that extends from Brutscher Street east to 
The Greens subdivision. When The Greens was built the developer extended a soft-surfaced path to 
the northwest corner of the subdivision. Chehalem Park and Recreation District then extended this 
path west across the northern edge of the golf course to Providence Drive. The owner of the vacant 
property east of the Suntron site has made a verbal commitment to extend this path along the 

163 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.CUP\2013\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery 800 N. Brutscher\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery staff report.doc 

northern edge of their site when it is developed. If this path is built across the northern edge of the 
former Suntron site then that will enable a continuous path all the way from The Greens subdivision 
to Brutscher Street. 

B. The location, design, and site planning of the proposed development will 
provide a convenient and functional living, working, shopping or civic 
environment, and will be as attractive as the nature of the use and its location and 
setting warrants. 

Finding:  The location and design of the site will provide a convenient and functional working 
environment for the winery. The applicant’s retail operations will remain focused in Dundee, and the 
proximity of this site will enable coordination between the sites. The building is larger than the 
applicant currently needs, and will provide significant room for growth. The site has mature 
landscaping consisting of trees and lawn, and is reasonably attractive for a light industrial facility. 
The applicant intends to improve the landscaping over time, so it is expected that the site will 
become more attractive over time. 

C. The proposed development will be consistent with this code. 

Finding:  The proposed use will be consistent with this development code, as determined in the 
design review criteria above.  

C. Additional Criteria That Apply 

Newberg Development Code 15.225.080:  Conditions 

The hearing body shall designate conditions in connection with the conditional use 
permit deemed necessary to secure the purpose of this chapter and the general 
conditional use permit criteria and require the guarantees and evidence that such 
conditions will be complied with.  Such conditions may include: 

(A) Regulation of uses. 
(B) Special yards, spaces. 
(C) Fences and walls. 
(D) Surfacing of parking areas to city specifications. 
(E) Street dedications and improvements (or bonds). 
(F) Regulation of points of vehicular ingress and egress. 
(G) Regulation of signs. 
(H) Landscaping and maintenance thereof. 
(I) Maintenance of the grounds. 
(J) Regulation of noise, vibration, odors or other similar nuisances. 
(K) Regulation of time for certain activities. 
(L) Time period within which the proposed use shall be developed. 
(M) Duration of use. 
(N) Such other conditions as will make possible the development of the city in 
an orderly and efficient manner in conformity with the Newberg comprehensive 
plan and this Newberg Development Code. 

164 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.CUP\2013\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery 800 N. Brutscher\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery staff report.doc 

Finding: As noted in the design review criteria and the conditional use permit criteria above, the 
winery use is expected to be compatible with the surrounding uses and does not require restrictions 
on the use beyond the conditions that have already been stated above.  

D. CONCLUSION: 

Based on the above-mentioned findings, the application meets the required criteria within the 
Newberg Development Code, subject to completion of the attached conditions. 

165 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.CUP\2013\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery 800 N. Brutscher\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery staff report.doc 

Exhibit “B” to Planning Commission Order 2013-12 
Conditions –File CUP-13-002/DR1-13-008 

Winery at 800 N. Brutscher Street 
 

A. THE FOLLOWING MUST BE COMPLETED BEFORE THE CITY WILL ISSUE A 
BUILDING PERMIT: 

1. Permit Submittal:  Submit a building permit application, two (2) complete working 
drawing sets of the proposed project, two (2) complete electrical plans, and two (2) 
copies of a site plan.  Show all the features of the plan approved through design 
review, including the following: 

a. Bicycle parking plan 
b. Mechanical details 
c. O.S.S.C. Chapter 11 (ADA) requirements relating to access from the public 

way, parking spaces and signage 
d. On-site walks 
e. Plumbing details 
f. Structural details 

 
2. Conditions of Approval:  Either write or otherwise permanently affix the conditions 

of approval contained within this report onto the first page of the plans submitted for 
building permit review. 

3. Disabled/ADA Requirements:  Coordinate with the Building Division to comply 
with O.S.S.C. Chapter 11 requirements.   

4. Wastewater quality: Coordinate with the Public Works – Operations division at the 
city wastewater treatment plant during the building permit process to ensure that the 
plumbing changes do not result in potential violations of the municipal code regarding 
prohibited discharges to the sanitary sewer system, that proper backflow prevention 
devices are installed to protect the potable water system, and that the proposed mode 
of operation will not result in illicit discharges to the storm sewer system.   

5. Wastewater quantity: Applicant to submit sanitary sewer calculations prepared by a 
registered Civil Engineer that evaluate the downstream impact of the increased 
discharge from the site to and including the potential impacts to the Fernwood Road 
sanitary sewer pump station. 

B. THE FOLLOWING MUST BE ACCOMPLISHED PRIOR TO OCCUPANCY 

1. Parking: 

a. ADA parking: Reinstall the ADA parking place sign that has fallen. Replace 
any non-standard ADA signs.  

b. Bike parking: Install bike parking for at least 7 bikes. This should be located 

166 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.CUP\2013\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery 800 N. Brutscher\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery staff report.doc 

within 50 feet of a building entrance. 

2. Landscaping: Replace the dead parking lot tree with a similar type of tree to match 
the rest of the parking lot area. 

3. Fire Department Requirements:  This project is subject to compliance with all Fire 
Department standards relating to access and fire protection.  

4. Design Review Conditions:  Contact the Planning Division (503-537-1240) to verify 
that all design review conditions have been completed. 

5. Site Inspection:  Contact the Building Division (503-537-1240) for Building, 
Mechanical, and Plumbing final inspections.  Contact the Fire Department (503-537-
1260) for Fire Safety final inspections.  Contact Yamhill County (503-538-7302) for 
electrical final inspections.  Contact the Planning Division (503-537-1240) for 
landscaping final inspections.  

C. DEVELOPMENT NOTES 

1. Pedestrian path: The city requests that the applicant build a path (either hard or soft-
surfaced) on the public access easement across the northern part of the site.  

2. Signage:  A separate design review process is required for any new signs on the site. 

3. Systems development charges (SDCs) are collected when building permits are 
issued. The winery use may potentially increase the water and/or sewer system 
development charge from what the former user Suntron previously paid.   For 
questions regarding SDCs please contact the Engineering Division. 

4. Future additions or changes to the site that require design review: The review 
requirements for future changes to the building or site shall follow the design review 
processes outlined in section 15.220.020. 
a. Maintenance or repair of the building does not require design review, and 

internal plumbing or mechanical changes do not require design review.  
b. Minor changes to the building or site will generally require a Type 1 design 

review, which is an administrative process.  
c. More significant changes to the building or site will generally require a Type 2 

design review, which requires public notice and a public comment period. If 
the winery use is to be expanded as part of a building addition requiring a 
Type 2 design review then the expansion will be required to be reviewed by 
the Planning Commission as a modification to the conditional use permit.  

d. If the Newberg Development Code is changed in the future to make wineries 
an allowed use in the M-1 zone then future changes to the site would be 
reviewed solely through the design review process outlined in 15.220.020, and 
would not require a modification to the conditional use permit. 

167 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.CUP\2013\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery 800 N. Brutscher\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery staff report.doc 

Attachment 1:  Aerial Photo - Neighborhood 
 

168 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.CUP\2013\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery 800 N. Brutscher\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery staff report.doc 

Aerial Photo - Site 
 

 

 

 

  

169 of 203



 

 
“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.CUP\2013\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery 800 N. Brutscher\CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery staff report.doc 

Attachment 2: Site Plan 

 

 

170 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

171 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

172 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

173 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

174 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

175 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

176 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

177 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

178 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

179 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

180 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

181 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

182 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

183 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

184 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

185 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

186 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

187 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

188 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

189 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

190 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

191 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

192 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

193 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

194 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

195 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

196 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

197 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

198 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

199 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

200 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

201 of 203



ATTACHMENT 3: APPLICATION

202 of 203



203 of 203


	2013-0711 agenda.pdf
	Planning Commission Minutes 2013-0613
	OUTLINE FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 2012 plus ORS197
	Terra PC Packet_2013-0711
	Exhibit “A”
	to Planning Commission Order 2013-13
	Findings –File SUB2-12-003 – Terra Estates Subdivision
	Exhibit B
	to Planning Commission Order 2012-02
	Conditions of Approval – File SUB2-12-003 – Terra Estates Subdivision
	Attachment 1:  Aerial Photo
	Attachment 2:  Tentative Plan
	Attachment 3:  Contours Map

	CUP-13-002.DR1-13-008 winery staff report



